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List of abbreviations
AGSA
ARC
BBBEE
BRICS
CEO
COTII
CPE
CPPP
DACT
EDD
EIC
ER
EVP
FINCO
GRAP
HIPs
HR
ICT
IDC
Invo
tech
IPAP
ISO
IT
King III
MASDT
MMI
MOV
MQA
MSI

Auditor-General of South Africa
Audit and Risk Committee
Broad-based Black Economic Empowerment
Brazil, Russia, India, China and South Africa
Chief Executive Officer
Council of Trade and Industry Institutions
Critical Planning Exercise
Community Public Private Partnership
Programme
Downstream Aluminium Centre for
Technology
Economic Development Department
Enterprise Information Centre
Employee Relations
Employee Value Proposition
Finance Committee
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
High Impact Programmes
Human Resources
Information and Communication Technology
Industrial Development Corporation
Innovation Technology Business Incubator
Industrial Policy Action Plan
International Organization for Standards
Information Technology
King Report on Governance for South Africa
and the King Code of Governance Principles
Mpumalanga Agri-skills Development and
Training
Mapfura Makhura Incubator
Means of verification
Mining Qualification Authority
Mpumalanga Stainless Steel Initiative

NAMAC
NGP
PFMA
PMDS
REMCO
SA
SAMTI
SANAMI
SAQI
SAREBI
SATEC
SBTI
SCI
Secopa
Seda
sefa
SEOBI
SESUCI
SLJI
SMME
SMTDC
SNII
SOPC
SPI
Stp
the dti
TWIB
WHO
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National Manufacturing Advisory Centre
New Growth Path
Public Finance Management Act
Performance Management Development
System
Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee
South Africa
Seda Agricultural and Mining Tooling
Incubator
Seda Alfred Nzo Agro Manufacturing
Incubator
South African Quality Institute
Seda Atlantis Renewable Business Incubator
Seda Automotive Technology Centre
SoftstartBTI
Seda Construction Incubator
Seed Container Park
Small Enterprise Development Agency
Small Enterprise Finance Agency
Seda Essential Oils Business Incubator
Seda Sugar Cane Incubator
Seda Limpopo Jewellery Incubator
Small, Medium and Micro Enterprise
South African Manufacturing Technology
Demonstration Centre
Seda Nelson Mandela Bay ICT Incubator
Strategy and Organisational Performance
Committee
Seda Platinum Incubator
Seda Technology Programme
Department of Trade and Industry
Technology for Women in Business
World Health Organization
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Foreword by the Chairperson
2013/14 was a challenging, yet successful year for Seda.
The successes, which are detailed in this report, can be
attributed to the sterling leadership team at the helm of
the agency, who directed it through a rather challenging
environment.
The challenges mostly relate to the unusually high number
of changes at governance level. The term of office for
five members, including the Chairperson, came to an
end at the end of August 2013. A further two members of
the Board resigned during the course of the year due to
additional career responsibilities. The Small Enterprise
Finance Agency (sefa) Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
was appointed to the Seda Board in November 2013 to
increase collaboration between the two entities. This
was part of a reciprocal arrangement with the Seda CEO
sitting on the sefa Board.

“As government’s agency
for small enterprise
development,
Seda is well aware of
heightened shareholder and
stakeholder expectations.”
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The Seda CEO resigned during the year, after five years at
the helm of the agency. The Chief Financial Officer and
Executive Manager: Human Resources also left during the
year under review. The contribution and commitment of
these leaders during their time at Seda can be seen in
the operational stability and performance of the agency.
Mr Sipho Zikode was brought in from the dti to act as
CEO until a permanent CEO can be appointed.
As government’s agency for small enterprise development,
Seda is well aware of heightened shareholder and
stakeholder expectations. The agency’s strategic review
and implementation thereof are focussed on identifying
areas where stakeholders’ needs are greatest. Significant
progress in implementing its medium- to long-term
strategy was made during the year under review.

General Information

A project to realign Seda’s human resources (HR) with its
strategic direction was initiated during the year and is
expected to be completed by the end of the first quarter
of the next financial year. The project will identify
the competencies and expertise required to optimally
implement Seda’s strategic initiatives.
A comparison between Seda’s current programmes and
global good practice was conducted with the aim of
creating flagship programmes for Seda to improve its
impact and through which it can partner with other
institutions in the small enterprise development sphere.
Seda identified six high impact programmes (HIPs) that it
views as critical to small enterprise development going
forward. These are advocacy and lobbying on small
enterprise development; access to markets; incubation
support; supplier development; mentorship and coaching;
and technology transfer. Work has commenced on
positioning Seda as a thought leader in small enterprise
development, centred on these six HIPs.
Partnerships are, and will continue to be, an important
facet of Seda’s business model. Two areas that will
rely heavily on partnerships are enterprise and supplier
development, as well as advocacy and lobbying. Partners
identified for the former include large corporates and
state-owned entities and institutions in all three spheres
of government. Partners for the latter are business
chambers, industry leaders, research institutions and
universities.
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The Incubation Support Programme, which now supports
43 incubators after successfully establishing an additional
incubator in the financial year, continued to exceed
expectations and to provide much needed support to small
enterprises. The incubated small enterprises created
2,900 jobs during the year under review. The efforts of the
SMME Payment Assistance Hotline did not go unnoticed.
The hotline handled 1,379 calls during the reporting
period, and facilitated payments totalling R33.9 million.
This brings the total number of payments facilitated since
inception to nearly R380 million.
In closing, I wish to thank the Seda Board members and
Executive Management team who served the agency
diligently during the year. The outstanding results
presented in this Annual Report bear testimony to your
commitment to Seda.

Dr Ivor Zwane
Chairperson
30 July 2014
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Chief Executive Officer’s overview
and co-operatives, and prioritisation of growth sectors
are expected to yield the desired impactful results.
Seda built on the foundations of previous financial
years, and exceeded its performance targets on 16 of
its 18 planned indicators. Most notable were the high
client satisfaction levels, with levels of 97% and 94% for
Seda and the Seda Technology Programme respectively.
The project to realign Seda’s human resources with its
strategic direction had a negative impact on the filling of
vacancies, and the desired performance was not achieved.
The delivery network was not adversely affected by this
project and performance on core delivery targets was in
line with the previous years’ performance.

I am pleased to present this Annual Report of Seda, which
coincides with the ten year anniversary of the agency’s
establishment. The report reflects the performance of an
organisation that has accumulated a wealth of experience
and positioned itself as worthy of implementing a
mandate as challenging as small enterprise development.
Central to Seda’s past performance and future plans is
its alignment with the broader objectives of the dti and
the South African Government. The agency’s strategic
focus on increasing its incubator footprint, directing
specific interventions to the small and medium enterprise
segment, identifying and working with large-scale projects
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The strategic choices made in the past have made it
necessary for the agency to review its business and
operating models. The agency developed a business model
which will serve as a blueprint to becoming a provider
of quality, reliable, needs-based and growth-oriented
business advice and support. It also determines how Seda
will identify and engage with its stakeholders, particularly
its clients. Seda is in the process of implementing this
business model.
The small enterprise sector is rapidly changing and
dynamic in nature. Support institutions therefore have
to constantly review their services to ensure that they
are in line with the needs of small enterprises. Seda
recently partnered with a research institution and
private sector companies to survey small enterprises.
The survey highlighted the need for support in areas like
market knowledge, finding and keeping the right human
resources, and managing finances.

General Information

Despite its limited resources, Seda was able to establish
and operate an additional incubator during 2013/14,
bringing the number of supported incubators to 43.
Discussions were also initiated on creating a further
three incubators which are expected to be operational
in 2014/15. The network of 55 branches (12 Enterprise
Development Centre’s, being satellite offices in the
Western Cape), 19 mobile units, 17 co-location points
at local municipalities and 50 information kiosks was
maintained during the year, providing appropriate access
and support to thousands of small enterprises.
Clients supported by Seda continued to exceed
expectations for business growth. Approximately 67%
of assisted clients indicated an increase in turnover,
and 40% indicated an increase in the number of people
employed. Additional interventions, especially with
regards to creating access to markets, are expected to
sustain these performance levels and create opportunities
for further growth. It is worth noting that most of these
successful businesses, some of which are highlighted in
this report, realise growth after a number of interventions
and ongoing mentorship. This resonates with Seda’s client
journey approach, which aims to achieve predetermined
outcomes through needs-based support.
During the reporting period, Seda identified six HIPs,
namely advocacy and lobbying, access to local and foreign
markets, incubation, supplier development, mentorship
and coaching and technology transfer which will guide
its strategy into the future. The HIPs will be refined
and marketed as flagship programmes for the agency,
with the aim of creating a support network for each
programme. These networks, with Seda taking the lead,
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will include small enterprises, development finance
institutions, commercial banks, other small enterprise
support programmes and overseas partner institutions.
The agency will continue to improve its processes and
capabilities to align itself with the expectations of
dynamic entrepreneurs and small enterprise development.
Seda is recognised as the lead agency for small enterprise
development, as is evidenced by the number of
organisations it has partnered with. The coming years hold
much promise for small businesses, most notably through
the establishment of the Ministry for Small Enterprise
Development. Building on its experiences over the past
ten years, Seda looks forward to another decade of
developing, supporting and promoting small enterprises.
In conclusion, I would like to thank the Board, under the
capable guidance of Mr Linda Mngomezulu and Dr Ivor
Zwane, for the commitment, leadership and dedication
they have provided Seda during the past financial year. A
word of appreciation also goes to the agency’s Executive
Management and staff for their dedication and hard work
in making 2013/14 a successful year for Seda.

Mr Sipho Zikode
Acting CEO
30 July 2014
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Statement of responsibility and confirmation
of accuracy of the Annual Report
To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm
the following:
All information and amounts disclosed in the Annual Report
are consistent with the Annual Financial Statements
audited by the Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA).
The Annual Report is complete, accurate and is free of
any omissions.
The Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with
National Treasury’s Annual Report Guide for Schedule 3A
and 3C Public Entities.

reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability
of the performance information, the human resources
information and the Annual Financial Statements.
The AGSA is engaged to express an independent opinion
on the Annual Financial Statements.
In our opinion, the Annual Report fairly reflects the
operations, the performance information, the human
resources information and the financial affairs of Seda
for the financial year ended 31 March 2014.
Yours faithfully

The Annual Financial Statements (Part E) have been
prepared in accordance with the South African Standards
of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP)
applicable to Seda.
The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation
of the Annual Financial Statements and for the judgements
made in this information.
The accounting authority is responsible for establishing,
and implementing a system of internal control to provide
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Dr Ivor Zwane
Chairperson
30 July 2014

Mr Sipho Zikode
Acting CEO
30 July 2014

General Information

Strategic overview
Background
Seda was established in December 2004 through the
National Small Business Amendment Act (Act No. 29 of
2004) as an agency under the dti. Three existing entities
were merged to form Seda, namely Ntsika Enterprise
Promotion Agency, National Manufacturing Advisory Centre
(NAMAC) and the Community Public-Private Partnership
Programme (CPPP). The GODISA Trust and the National
Technology Transfer Centre merged with Seda in April
2006, becoming the Seda Technology Programme (Stp).
The small enterprise support function of the South African
Quality Institute (SAQI) and the technology related
activities of the Technology for Women in Business (TWIB)
were incorporated with the Stp in 2008. The Stp was fully
integrated into Seda structures in 2009.

Values
Nurture – we create a nurturing environment by
partnering with our clients and employees, and in
the way in which we care for and support them.

•

Innovation – we foster innovative ideas and
solutions in order to deliver exceptional customer
service.

•

Customer Service Excellence – we place
customer service excellence at the centre of
everything we do.

To be the centre of excellence for small enterprise
development in South Africa.

•

Ethical Behaviour – we behave with integrity in
all our actions, always acting in the best interest
of Seda.

The vision is translated into the high level areas of
competency, motivation, accountability as well as
customer drive. In order to become the centre of
excellence, we must strive towards improvement in all
these critical areas.

•

Resilience – we are resilient in our efforts to
achieve excellent results.

Mission
We develop, support and promote small enterprises to
ensure their growth and sustainability in co-ordination
and partnership with other role players.
Seda’s mission gives a clear-cut framework for everything
Seda does. This is exhibited through its product range
as well as the approach, attitude and work ethic of its

A

staff. The success of Seda is ultimately measured
against this mission: How well Seda is ensuring the
growth and sustainability of the small enterprises it has
interacted with.

•

Vision

part

Seda’s core values govern its operations and relationships
with its stakeholders, including clients, partners,
employees, local community and its shareholder. These
values remain constant and are not affected by changes
in the operational environment and management.

Products and Services
Seda provides business-related information, advice,
consultancy, training and mentoring services in all areas
of enterprise development. These services aim to provide

SEDA ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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Strategic overview (continued)

solutions to various business functions – from production
and human resources, to finance, marketing and export
development. Rural enterprise development and cooperatives are supported through the Co-operatives
and Community Private Partnerships Programme (CPPP).
Through Stp, Seda provides technology transfer, business
and technology incubation services, as well as incentives
for management system implementation (such as ISO 9001
and OHSAS 18001), product testing and certification, as
well as machinery and equipment testing.
Seda’s target market covers small, medium and micro
enterprises (SMMEs), including co-operatives, as well
as potential entrepreneurs with a business idea. The
definition of a small enterprise is provided for in the
National Small Business Act (Act No. 102 of 1996), and is
based on the number of employees, turnover and fixed
assets. Seda defines its clients according to the number
of employees.

Small enterprises defined by
number of employees:
Medium: 51–200
Small: 21–50
Very small: 6–20
Micro: 0–5
Historically, Seda has primarily focused on the micro
and very small segments of the SMME sector, due to
the sheer volume and number of people who want to

14
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start a business. The outputs in terms of clients assisted
have been huge, but this has had a negative impact on
measuring Seda’s effect on elements such as employment
levels, profitability and sustainability of assisted clients.
To maximise impact, the agency has implemented
a number of initiatives. Firstly, Seda has adopted a
‘client journey approach’ that aims to work with small
enterprises over a longer period, as opposed to once-off
interventions. This approach is based on research that
shows a strong correlation between long-term support and
impact, i.e. increase in turnover and number of people
employed. Prior to embarking on any intervention, a Seda
Business Advisor assesses the needs of the client and,
based on the assessment, the client, together with the
Seda Business Advisor, drafts a development plan with
specific development interventions. These services are
provided to the client either by Seda’s own staff, or
through specialised service providers.
Secondly, the agency has prioritised the upper end of
the small enterprise sector, i.e. businesses employing
between 21 and 200 people, for interventions, as
this market segment offers the greatest job creation
potential. A needs analysis was conducted for these clients
and relevant programmes have been identified. These
programmes include supplier development, mentorship
and coaching, access to local and international markets,
incubation, technology transfer, conformity assessment
and standards. This change in focus to the upper end of
the small enterprise segment is affirmed by a number
of studies and plans. The diagram below quotes two of
these and maps out the strategic shift and consequences
for Seda.

General Information
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Diagram 2: Seda’s Strategic Focus

Research

Strategic Shift

Key Considerations

A small minority of
high‑growth businesses
hold the key to job
creation and wider
prosperity1.

“...the agency will enhance its
focus on small- and medium-sized
enterprises (those employing between
21 and 200 employees). These
segments of the SMME sector have
greater job creation potential in
comparative terms. Over time, the
agency aims to spend more time with
existing businesses, thereby providing
more interventions per client and
ultimately registering greater impact
on assisted small enterprises”³

• Product, service and needs of
high-growth business category
differ from other Seda client
categories

SMEs contribute 32%
of Gross Domestic
Product (GDP), 59% of
employment and 19% of
exports².

• Best way to access these
customers
• Operational changes required
• Investment in people and
systems necessary
• Strategic partnerships
• Impact measurement
• Risks and trade-offs

Sources:
1. Extract from NESTA UK publication The Vital 6% (Oct 2009)
2. Malaysia SME Master Plan 2012 2020
3. Extract from Seda Annual Performance Plan 2012/13

• Implications for financial
sustainability
• Funding model

Seda’s service delivery network has delivery points located throughout the country, including Seda branches and
enterprise development centres, Seda-supported incubation centres and enterprise information centres (EICs). Seda
also utilises information kiosks and mobile units to access remote areas. In addition, Seda co-locates with local
municipalities and various other partners in areas where it does not have a branch.

SEDA ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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Legislative and other mandates
Seda derives its mandate from the National Small Business
Amendment Act (as amended by Act No. 29 of 2004). Its
mandate is as follows:
•

Implement national government’s policy for small
enterprise development;

•

Design and implement a standard national delivery
network that must uniformly apply throughout
the Republic in respect of small enterprise
development, integrating all government-funded
small enterprise support agencies, across all
spheres of government;

•

Design and implement small enterprise
development support programmes; and

•

Establish provincial structures to ensure the
effective implementation of its function.

Seda is listed as a Schedule 3A public entity in terms of
the Public Finance Management Act (Act No. 1 of 1999),
as amended (PFMA).
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Key

BOARD

Division
National Office

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Provinces
Independent
Incubation
Centres

Administration
Support Office of
the CEO

Legal, Corporate
Governance and
Compliance

CORPORATE
SERVICES

Employee
Relations

Facilities
Management

Risk and Audit
Management

ENTERPRISE
DEVELOPMENT

FINANCE

SEDA
TECHNOLOGY
PROGRAMME

Co-ops and
CPPP

Provincial
Affairs

Financial
Management

Quality
Assurance

Remuneration,
Recruitment
and Employee
Wellness

Marketing and
Corporate
Communications

Learning
Academy

Provincial
Offices (9)

Management
Accounting

Technology
Transfer

Organisational
Development
and
Performance

Stakeholder
relations
and Records
Management

Programme
Analysis and
Development

Branches
(43)

Supply Chain
Management

Incubation

Operations
Assessment
and Reporting

Independent
Incubation
Centres (43)

STRATEGY AND
INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT

Information and
Communication
Technology

Strategy and
Organisational
Performance
Management
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The Seda Executive Management team
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BCompt Hons, CTA

MB (Bachelor of Medicine),
NDip: Management

Mr Lusapho Njenge
Chief Strategy and
Information Officer

Mr Diamond Mushwana
Executive Manager:
Corporate Services
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MPhil: Future Studies
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Diploma, LLB

Mr Siphiwo Soga
Acting Executive
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Technology Programme
BA: Journalism and
Media Studies, Advanced
Executive Programme,
MBA
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PART B
PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Auditor’s report: predetermined objectives
The AGSA currently performs the necessary audit
procedures on the performance information to provide
reasonable assurance in the form of an audit conclusion.
The audit conclusion on the performance against
predetermined objectives is included in the report to
management, with material findings being reported under
the Predetermined Objectives heading in the report on
other legal and regulatory requirements section of the
AGSA’s report.
Refer to page 79 to 81 of the Annual Report for the AGSA’s
report, published in Part E: Financial Information.
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PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Situational analysis
Service delivery environment
Seda performed well against its targets, meeting 83%
of its targets for the year. Key achievements include
a satisfaction level of 97% for the services provided
(target: 88%), an increase in turnover for 67% of clients
assisted (target: 35%) and a subsequent increase in the
number of people employed, reported by 40% of assisted
clients (target: 25%).
This was achieved despite low economic growth prospects
for South African for the year. As a result, opportunities
for small business growth and access to new markets
remained somewhat subdued. Seda has taken a long-term
view to small enterprise development, and has aligned
its interventions with key policy documents such as the
NGP and IPAP2.
Besides stimulating local demand for small enterprise
products and services, Seda reviewed its trade facilitation
programme to take advantage of key growth markets in the
rest of the African continent and fellow BRICS countries.
Seda agreed to four strategic focus areas in the previous
planning cycle, and approached the 2014/15–2016/17
planning cycle with those areas in mind. These strategic
focus areas are increasing Seda’s incubator footprint,
directing specific interventions to the small and medium
enterprise segments, identifying and working with
large‑scale projects and co-operatives, and prioritising
growth sectors. Seda and the dti agree that these focus
areas will give impetus to government’s priority of job
creation. There is therefore no fundamental shift in
strategic direction for the coming three years. The
diagram below illustrates key policy statements that
inform Seda’s strategy review.

part
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Diagram 1: Shareholder Objectives for Small Enterprise
Development

Department of Trade and Industry
•
•
•

To increase supply for financial and non-financial
support for SMMEs
To create demand for SMME products and services
To reduce small enterprise regulatory constraints

Seda’s Strategy Review

National Development Plan
•
•
•
•

To enhance economic growth through SMMEs
To reduce the unemployment rate to 6% by 2030
To increase support for SMMEs
Reduced cost of regulatory compliance for SMMEs

An analysis of the implementation of the Annual
Performance Plan 2012/13–2014/15 showed that Seda
has made significant progress in this regard. The number
of supported incubators increased from 32 to 42 during
the 2012/13 financial year and an additional incubator
was established in 2013/14, bringing the number to 43.
The sectoral profile of Seda’s clients mirrored that of
government’s priority sectors, with most clients being
in the services, agriculture and manufacturing sectors.
The percentage of clients in the upper end of the small
enterprise sector, i.e. those employing between 21 and
200 people, has increased from 1.3% to 2.39%. A number of
programmes were identified as key interventions for this
SEDA ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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Situational analysis (continued)

segment of the market. The shift in focus from primary
to secondary co-operatives resulted in 28 operational
secondary co-operatives being supported. A further 18
large-scale projects with the potential to create local
value chains were identified and are at various stages
of development. The formation of the Co-operatives
Development Agency is currently under way and is likely
to have implications for Seda’s CPPP Programme.
The strategic planning process for the 2014/15–2016/17
period therefore focused on the identification and
definition of strategic themes that would result in greater
outcomes for the agency. Six strategic themes or HIPs were
identified, namely advocacy and lobbying, access to local
and foreign markets, incubation, supplier development,
mentorship and coaching, and technology transfer.

Promotion Programme. The programme includes the
Trade Point Programme and the dti Trade Missions, and
is currently being revised to increase the ways in which
small businesses can access foreign markets. Incubation
centres will increasingly play a catalyst role in linking small
enterprises with markets. There is also an opportunity
to take advantage of initiatives, such as government’s
National Infrastructure Plan, local content discussions
and developments, and the Youth Empowerment Accord.
Clustering markets according to sectors will give the
agency a sense of where most opportunities lie.

Seda refined its marketing and communications strategy
to enhance its advocacy role. This was largely informed
by the Seda Reputation Study, which was conducted in
2012, and the Seda strategic focus areas. The agency
plans to utilise its experiences and feedback from assisted
clients to periodically give a sense of how the sector is
performing, and to position Seda as the driver of small
enterprise development in the country. Seda will also
pay attention to areas such as small enterprise sector
research, ensuring continued political leverage for small
enterprises and building the agency’s competitive edge.

Incubation has been identified as key to the development
of a vibrant and growing small enterprise sector in the
dti’s strategies as well as the NDP. The Minister of Trade
and Industry continuously highlights the need for South
Africa to develop a credible number of incubators. To
prepare for the imminent increase, Seda conducted an
independent review of its supported incubators and
recommended improvements, which are currently being
implemented. The agency is also reviewing its incubation
model in line with global best practice. The review will
consider and propose models that Seda can implement to
improve the impact and value created by incubators; to
gain the internal skills required to manage the growing
incubation footprint; to guide interventions around postincubation support and an integrated service delivery
model that works with Seda branches.

The ability to access local and foreign markets consistently
features as one of the challenges faced by small businesses.
Seda currently assists clients to access local markets
through a wide range of interventions, such as procurement
portals and interventions to enhance visibility; and
export markets through the Export Development and

The demand-driven Supplier Development Programme
seeks to identify procurement/supplier opportunities for
small enterprises in large corporates and state‑owned
entities. The revised Broad-based Black Economic
Empowerment (BBBEE) Codes present an opportunity
for small enterprises to access the supply chains of
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large organisations. The programme aims to strengthen
the performance of small enterprises, not only through
enabling them to acquire the skills and capabilities
required to make them globally competitive, but also
by improving their business acumen and assisting them
to reduce operational costs. The Supplier Development
Programme aims to provide holistic support to small
enterprises, and will work with partner institutions in
areas such as business development services, access
to finance, technology access and business linkage
facilitation. Seda-specific interventions relating to
supplier development include:

capacity to provide mentors to their franchisees. This is
another area that Seda will focus on through mentorship
days, where industry leaders or sector experts will spend
a day with these mentors and mentees.

•

Clearly defined performance measures and baseline
performance information will be developed for the
above-mentioned priority programmes during the next
financial year.

•
•
•

Implementation of management systems (quality,
finance, production, logistics);
Productivity improvement;
Technology upgrade; and
Product development.

These interventions will be augmented by media awareness
on supplier development, stakeholder identification
and mapping and a flexible approach to programme
implementation that accounts for dynamics of the large
corporates and state-owned entities.
The Mentorship and Coaching Programme is offered in
two formats. The one-to-many approach is used mostly
for start-up enterprises with similar challenges, as well
as established businesses across an industry-specific value
chain. The one-to-one approach is used to augment the
technical and managerial skills of small enterprises. There
is an opportunity to work with funding institutions (loan
funding and incentives), with Seda providing post-funding
support to clients of these institutions. Recent research
has indicated that newly-established franchises lack the

The Technology Transfer Programme offers incentives
to small enterprises, predominantly in manufacturing, to
improve their productivity. To improve transparency and
turnaround times, a portal has been created to manage
the programme. Going forward, the programme will
work closer with Seda branches to ensure that incentive
support is supplemented by other support interventions.

Key programmes aligned with the dti’s priorities
The Department of Trade and Industry’s Annual
Performance Plan 2013/14–2015/16 lists the following
strategic objectives:
•

•

•

•

Facilitate transformation of the economy to
promote industrial development, investment,
competitiveness and employment creation;
Build mutually beneficial regional and global
relations to advance South Africa’s trade,
industrial policy and economic development
objectives;
Facilitate broad-based economic participation
through targeted interventions to achieve inclusive
growth;
Create a fair regulatory environment that enables
investment, trade and enterprise development in
SEDA ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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Situational analysis (continued)

•

an equitable and socially responsive manner; and
Promote a professional, ethical, dynamic,
competitive and customer-focused working
environment that ensures effective and efficient
service delivery.

Seda, through its programmes, products and services,
contributes in varying degrees to all five of the dti’s
strategic objectives. This contribution is done in
collaboration with the dti and the Council of Trade and
Industry Institutions (COTII). The objective that the
agency’s mandate aligns with the most is “Facilitate
broad-based economic participation through targeted
interventions to achieve inclusive growth”.
IPAP 2 categorises priority sectors into three clusters:
•

•

•
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Cluster 1: New areas of focus including metal
fabrication, capital and transport equipment
sectors, green and energy-saving industries and
agro-processing;
Cluster 2: Up-scaled and broadened interventions
in sectors which were identified in the first IPAP,
namely automotive and components, medium
and heavy vehicles; plastics, pharmaceuticals
and chemicals; clothing, textiles, footwear
and leather; biofuels; forestry, paper, pulp and
furniture; creative and cultural industries; and
business process services; and
Cluster 3: Sectors in which South Africa has
the potential to develop long-term advanced
capabilities, namely nuclear; advanced materials;
aerospace and defence; and electrotechnical and
ICT.

SEDA SMALL ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

This sector prioritisation affirms the relevance of Seda’s
priority sectors.
Seda will continue to focus on its four priority areas
during the 2014/15 and 2016/17 financial years. The
focus on large-scale projects and co-operatives is likely
to be affected by the establishment of the Co-operatives
Development Agency.
Seda will provide assistance where possible, and will
partner with other institutions to ensure holistic support
to small enterprises in the strategic focus areas.

Organisational environment
Seda directed its efforts during 2013/14 towards
implementing the planned activities and focussing on
the identified strategic focus areas. Considerable work
was done in this regard, particularly in identifying and
refining the six identified themes into HIPs.
The agency continued to improve its processes and
capabilities to match the huge expectations made on it,
and to match the dynamic nature of entrepreneurship
and small enterprise development. Seda is increasingly
being recognised as the lead agency for small enterprise
development, as is evident from the number of
organisations it has partnered with. A structural review
exercise was initiated in 2013/14 and it is expected to
outline an organisational structure that is better aligned
with the agency’s strategy. The structure will also respond
to the skills requirements of the HIPs. The imminent
establishment of the Co-operatives Development Agency
is further expected to have an impact on the structure
and operations of Seda.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

A large number of changes were made at Board and
Executive Management level during the year. The term
of office of five members of the Board, including the
Chairperson Mr Linda Mngomezulu, ended in August 2013.
A further two members of the Board resigned during the
course of the year. The sefa CEO was appointed to the
Seda Board in November 2013 to increase collaboration
between the two entities. As a result of the above
changes, the agency ended the year with a reduced
Board of only eight members (including the CEO).
The CEO, Ms Hlonela Lupuwana, resigned and ended her
term in December 2013. Mr Sipho Zikode, the Deputy
Director-General for Broadening Participation at the dti
has been acting as CEO since January 2014.
The Human Resources and Corporate Services functions
were merged under Corporate Services, and Mr Diamond
Mushwana was appointed as Executive Manager: Corporate
Services in January 2014. The Executive Manager: Human
Resources resigned in September 2013.
The Chief Operations Officer position was renamed,
Executive Manager: Enterprise Development and
Mr Sibusiso Kunene, who had been acting in the position
since February 2013, was appointed to the position in
December 2013.

Key policy developments and legislative
changes
No key policies were developed, nor legislative changes
made during the reporting period which impacted on
Seda. Seda is aware of the policy developments with
regard to co-operatives support and the likely impact
this will have on its co-operatives support programmes.
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Strategic outcome-oriented goals
Seda’s goal is to ensure that the small enterprise sector
grows and increases its contribution to sustainable and
equitable social and economic development, employment
and wealth creation. The first two strategic objectives,
namely enhancing competitiveness and capabilities
of small enterprises through co-ordinated services,
programmes and products and ensuring equitable access
to business support services, are directly linked to this
goal. The third strategic objective aims to build and
strengthen the agency to deliver on its mandate.
Impact is the long-term outcome or consequence of
Seda’s activities and the effect it has on people and the
environment. Seda’s legislative mandate and mission
give direction regarding what is expected from it in the
long-term. Seda’s impact is measured through periodic
evaluations within a range of three to five years; the
evaluations are conducted by the dti.
Expected impact: Increased contribution of small
enterprises to the South African economy, and the
promotion of economic growth, job creation and equity.
While working towards the above impact, Seda will strive
to achieve the following strategic objectives set for the
period 2014/15–2016/17:
•

•
•

Strategic objective 1: Enhance competitiveness
and capabilities of small enterprises through coordinated services, programmes and products;
Strategic objective 2: Ensure equitable access to
business support services; and
Strategic objective 3: Strengthen the agency to
deliver on its mission.

SEDA ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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Performance highlights
•

Service quality rated as good or excellent by 97%
of assisted clients.

•

Business improvement polled higher than
expected with 67% of clients surveyed indicating
an increase in turnover, and 40% indicating an
increase in the number of people employed.

•

Served 10,619 clients (see client breakdown in
Figure 1).

•

Partnerships and events targeting specific
demographic groupings resulted in small
enterprises owned by people with disabilities
making up 1.3% of Seda’s clients, while 45.7%
were youth-owned (Figures 2 and 3).

•

•

•

•
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Seda made a concerted effort to promote and
assist small enterprises in the key growth sectors
such as agriculture and manufacturing (Figure 4).
Established and supported 28 secondary cooperatives.
41 partnerships were entered into with
provincial and local government, which partners
contributed R5.7 million towards Seda’s service
delivery initiatives.
Allocated 74.31% of available funds to the
delivery network.

SEDA SMALL ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

•

Spent 94.89% of funds according to budget.

•

31.1% of vacancies were filled.

•

94% of clients were satisfied with the quality
of services provided by the Technology Transfer
Programme.

•

Increased the number of supported incubators
from 42 to 43 through which 1,587 clients were
supported, 423 of whom were newly-established
businesses.

•

The supported incubators created 2,900 jobs,
mostly in the construction and agriculture
sectors.

•

44 clients assisted with technology to improve
their productivity.

•

173 clients were assisted with conformity and
product testing.

•

825 clients were trained on national and
international standards mostly required to enter
lucrative local and export markets.

•

Supported 43 clients with implementation
systems.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Figure1: Breakdown of clients working with by province
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Figure 2: Gender profile of Seda’s clients
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Figure 3: Race profile of Seda’s clients

Figure 4: Sectoral profile of Seda’s clients
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Performance information by strategic objective
Seda’s performance information for 2013/14 is aligned with the performance indicators and targets set in its Annual
Performance Plan 2013/14–2015/16. Seda achieved and exceeded performance targets on eight of its ten strategic
indicators. The Seda Technology Programme achieved and exceeded its performance targets on all eight its strategic
indicators.
The performance against strategic indicators is tabulated below. The following key applies:
Blue denotes target is achieved or exceeded
Amber denotes target is not achieved by less than 5%
Red denotes target is not achieved by more than 5%

Objective 1: Enhance competitiveness and capabilities of small enterprises through
co-ordinated services, programmes and products
Overview
Seda’s service delivery model requires its practitioners to assess satisfaction levels with the quality of services rendered
thirty days after an intervention, and to assess business improvement outcomes within six months after an intervention.
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

28

Outcome

Performance
measure or
indicator

Client
satisfaction
ensured

% of surveyed clients
satisfied with quality
of Seda’s services

Annual
target
88%

Achievement
Reasons for variance
97%

SEDA SMALL ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Concerted efforts were
made in the current and
previous financial years
to improve the quality
and capacity of business
development service
providers and project
management.

Measures
taken to
rectify
Target
revised
upwards for
2014/15 and
2016/17.

Sources of Responsible
verification executive
Branch
means of
verification
(MOV) files

Executive
Manager:
Enterprise
Development

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Outcome

Performance
measure or
indicator

Client
business
performance
improved

% of surveyed
SMME clients
whose turnover has
increased (growth)

35%

67%

Access to market-related
interventions enabled
clients’ businesses to grow
and increase turnover.

Target
Branch MOV Executive
revised
files
Manager:
upwards for
Enterprise
2014/15 and
Development
2016/17.

% of surveyed
SMME clients
whose number of
employees has
increased (growth)

25%

40%

Business expansion in key
sectors, such as services
and agriculture, resulted
in clients employing more
people.

Target
Branch MOV Executive
revised
files
Manager:
upwards for
Enterprise
2014/15 and
Development
2016/17.

Annual
target

Achievement
Reasons for variance

Measures
taken to
rectify
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Sources of Responsible
verification executive

Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance
No underperformance reported.
Changes to planned targets
No targets were changed.
Linking performance with budgets
Budget
R’000

Strategic Objective 1
Enhance competitiveness and capabilities of small enterprises through co-ordinated services,
programmes and products

161,357

SEDA ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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Performance information by strategic objective (continued)

Objective 2: Ensure equitable access to business support services
Overview
Seda provides a wide range of services, such as business-related information, advice, consultancy, training and
mentoring in all areas of enterprise development.
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Outcome

Performance
measure or
indicator

Annual
target

Client reach Number of clients
improved
working with

Rural
Number of adopted
enterprise
enterprises under
development CPPP Programme
enhanced

Cost‑sharing
with
delivery
partners
maintained

Value of service
delivery costs
covered by delivery
partners
Number of
partnerships
operational

Achievement
Reasons for variance

10,400

10,619

24

28

R6
million

R5.7 mil

40

41

Concerted efforts were
made in the fourth
quarter to address
under‑performance in the
third quarter.
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Sources of Responsible
verification executive

None

Branch MOV Executive
files
Manager:
Enterprise
Development

None
Significantly higher than
anticipated co‑operatives
mobilised into secondary
co‑operatives in Gauteng,
Mpumalanga, Eastern Cape
and KwaZulu-Natal.

Project files Executive
Manager:
Enterprise
Development

Delays in transfer of
partner funding resulted
in some funds not being
utilised by year end.

Negotiate
for timely
transfer of
partnership
funding

Financial
reports

Chief
Financial
Officer

None

None

Partnership
records

Executive
Manager:
Corporate
Services

Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance
The agency will negotiate for timely transfer of partnership funding.
Changes to planned targets
No changes were made to targets

Measures
taken to
rectify
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Linking performance with budgets
Budget
R’000

Strategic Objective 2
Ensure equitable access to business support services

146,841

Objective 3: Strengthen the organisation to deliver on its mission
Overview
A well-functioning and responsive support function is critical to the success of Seda’s delivery network.
Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements

Outcome
Cost
efficiency
improved

Organisational
staffing
improved

Performance
measure or
indicator

Annual
target

Achievement
Reasons for variance

Measures taken
to rectify

Sources of Responsible
verification executive

% of direct
service delivery
cost versus
total delivery
cost

62%

74.31%

Mid-term budget review
resulted in more funds
being allocated to the
provincial network for
direct service delivery.

None, in line with
Seda’s principle to
utilise more funds
on direct service
delivery.

Financial
reports

Chief
Financial
Officer

% of deviations
of actual
expenditure
from approved
budget

5%

5.11%
underspend

This is due to underexpenditure on personnel
as a moratorium was
placed on the filling of
vacancies due to the
realignment project.
This also affected other
HR related programmes
budget.

Financial
The realignment
project is currently reports
being finalised for
implementation
in the next
financial year and
recruitment will
be prioritised with
filling of vacancies.

Chief
Financial
Officer

% reduction in
staff vacancies

50%

31.1%

Recruitment of certain
positions put on hold
due to organisational
realignment project and
challenges in finding
suitable candidates in
specialist areas such as IT.

Finalise
organisational
realignment
project and
prioritise
recruitment.

HR reports

Executive
Manager:
Corporate
Services
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Performance information by strategic objective (continued)

Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance
Seda will finalise its organisational realignment project and prioritise recruitment.
Changes to planned targets
No changes have been made to the targets.
Linking performance with budgets
Strategic Objective 3
Ensure equitable access to business support services

Budget
R’000
174,395

Seda Technology Programme
Strategic Objective 1: Enhance competitiveness and capabilities of small enterprises through co-ordinated
services, programmes and products
Overview
The Seda Technology Programme (Stp) strives to promote the facilitation of transformation of the South African Economy,
by promoting industrial development, investment and competitiveness and employment creation. Stp interventions
contribute to the objectives of facilitating broad-based economic participation thus ensuring inclusive growth. The
sustainability and increasing mortality rate of SMMEs remains a challenge in South Africa and throughout the world
and Stp programmes are geared to address these challenges. The business incubation programme provides business
support to SMMEs over a period of time thus ensuring sustainability of incubated clients. SMMEs are supported by the
Technology Transfer Fund to access appropriate technology that will assist in the development and growth of their
businesses. The last intervention provided by Stp is Quality and Standards support services, which ensure that small
enterprises are able to provide quality products and services and improve their systems and quality control measures.
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Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements
Outcome/
output

Performance
measure/
indicator

Annual
target

Achievement
Reasons for variance Measures to rectify

Sources of Responsible
verification executive

Client
satisfaction
ensured

% of surveyed
clients
satisfied with
quality of Seda
services

80%

94%

Result of efforts
to improve on last
year’s performance,
especially around
service provider
management.

Target to be
reviewed in next
planning cycle.

Survey
Report

Acting
Executive
Manager: Seda
Technology
Programme

Client
business
performance
improved

Number of
potential
entrepreneurs
turned into
trading
businesses

242

432

Existing number
of incubators was
increased, leading to
increased intake of
new clients.

Target revised
for 2014/15 and
2016/17.

Incubator
reports

Acting
Executive
Manager: Seda
Technology
Programme

Number of
jobs created

989

2,900

Seasonal sectors,
such as agriculture,
performed better.

Target revised
for 2014/15 and
2016/17.

Incubator
reports

Acting
Executive
Manager: Seda
Technology
Programme

Number
of clients
supported

935

1,587

There was an
increase in the
number of supported
incubators.

Target revised
for 2014/15 and
2016/17.

Incubator
reports

Acting
Executive
Manager: Seda
Technology
Programme

Number
Clients
assisted with of clients
supported
technology
transfer
incentives

38

44

Higher than
anticipated number
of applications,
coupled with
improved turnaround
times to process
applications.

None

Programme
reports

Acting
Executive
Manager: Seda
Technology
Programme

Number
Clients
assisted with of clients
supported
conformity
assessment
and product
testing

127

173

Concerted efforts
were made in the
fourth quarter to
address underperformance in the
third quarter.

None

Programme
reports

Acting
Executive
Manager: Seda
Technology
Programme

Client
support
services
provided
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Performance information by strategic objective (continued)

Key performance indicators, planned targets and actual achievements (continued)
Outcome/
output

Performance
measure/
indicator

Annual
target

Achievement
Reasons for variance Measures to rectify

Sources of Responsible
verification executive

Number
Training
of clients
conducted
supported
on national
and
international
standards

425

825

Increased demand
for technical
training, particularly
from branches and
incubators.

Target revised
for 2014/15 and
2016/17.

Programme
reports

Acting
Executive
Manager: Seda
Technology
Programme

Systems
Number
implementa- of clients
tion support supported
provided

34

43

Improved efficiency
in approval process.

Target revised
for 2014/15 and
2016/17.

Programme
reports

Acting
Executive
Manager: Seda
Technology
Programme

Strategy to overcome areas of underperformance
No underperformance was reported.
Changes to planned targets
No changes were made to targets.
Linking performance with budgets
Stp Objective
Enhance competitiveness and capabilities of small enterprises through co-ordinated services,
programmes and products
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Budget
R’000
135,637

Provincial Management team
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Ms Ntombozuko Somtunzi
Acting Provincial Manager: Eastern Cape

Ms Jackie Ntshingila
Provincial Manager: Free State

Ms Nosipho Khonkwane
Provincial Manager: Gauteng

Mr Lindani Dlhomo
Provincial Manager: KwaZulu-Natal

Mr Koenie Slabbert
Provincial Manager: Limpopo

Ms Ntokozo Majola
Provincial Manager: Mpumalanga

Ms Kedisaletse Williams
Provincial Manager: Northern Cape

Mr Neville Maimane
Provincial Manager: North West

Mr Ryno Kleynhans
Acting Provincial Manager: Western Cape
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Success stories

Lichaba Creations
Location: Johannesburg, Gauteng, Welkom, Free State
Seda branch: Tshwane
Business offering: Manufacture of jewellery

“In the beginning it was difficult. I used to
rush from one place to another without proper
direction. But since I knocked on Seda’s door,
things have changed. They are the organisation
that takes small businesses from start-out
(with nothing) to greater heights. I thank their
professional business advisors.”

Max Lichaba
36
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Background
As early as 2003, Max Lichaba realised that economic
wealth in South Africa would only be realised if the
gold mined in this country was actually beneficiated
here rather than abroad. He also realised that this
provided an outstanding opportunity for BBBEE
companies, and hence he registered his company.
Although operations only began in 2008, the results
soon led to the creation of 20 jobs through its
value-added gold products.
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was then referred to the Seda Technology Programme
for assistance in obtaining a machinery grant and in
implementing quality management systems that would
bring the products in line with international requirements.

The challenge
The turnover plateaued. The company lacked certain
essential processing equipment and had no quality
management system in place. When Lichaba Creations
approached Seda for assistance, the company was on
its way to exhibit in India in an effort to improve its
situation, but had no strategic marketing material or
business documents in place.
Seda’s intervention
Having completed a critical planning exercise (CPE),
Seda’s Business Advisor immediately recommended
the development of a business profile, presentation
folders and business cards to assist at the exhibition. Max

The outcomes
• Strategic business documents were drawn up and
submitted to the Seda Technology Programme. A
R600,000 incentive for the purchase of additional
specialised equipment was granted as a result;
• The quality of finished products was improved
through the implementation of a quality
management programme and the use of the
specialised equipment;
• Accreditation for training was granted by the
Mining Qualification Authority (MQA);
• An additional 53 jobs were created, bringing the
total number of employees to 73;
• The international market was penetrated, notably
through India, China and the United Arab Emirates;
and
• Turnover increased from R1,174,643 to R5,500,000
per annum.
Advice to other SMMEs
“Young people should not say that there is no work out
there. Our government, through institutions like the
Department of Trade and Industry and Seda, is doing
so much to assist young business people. I started my
business when I was only 21 years old and through the
assistance I have received, I now supply international
markets. I say let’s go out there and see what we can
do. If you have an idea, go to Seda and let them help
you draft a business plan,” says Max.
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Success stories (continued)

Volkscity Motor Specialist
Location: Silverton, Pretoria
Stp: Technology Transfer
Business offering: Motor repairs and tyre services

“I have worked with many of government’s
small business institutions over the past ten
years and can honestly say Seda is the best –
I give them a 1 million percent rating! Thanks
to Seda’s generous 100% grant, I now have
state-of-the-art equipment in my workshop.”

Siphiwe Zikalala
38
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Background
Siphiwe Zikalala always dreamt of owning his own
business and creating jobs for others. After obtaining
his Motor Mechanics Diploma, he joined Volkswagen
Menlyn as an apprentice. Four years later, he started
his own business, Volkscity Motor Specialist.
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The challenge
Even though the business had a constant inflow of
customers, a lack of machinery hampered service
delivery. Another challenge was managing the business’
finances, including record-keeping and accounting for
every business transaction.
Seda intervention
Through the Seda Technology transfer fund, machinery
and equipment at a value of R700,000 were purchase to
expand his business. Some of the conditions of the grant
required that Volkscity Motor Specialist must be run as a
fully functional, sustainable business, including paying
its taxes and keeping financial accounting up to date.
The result
Volkscity Motor Specialist now boasts state-of-the-art
workshop equipment, and Seda’s business advice has
allowed Siphiwe to run his business more efficiently.
Siphiwe hopes to expand his business even further,
ultimately offering a one-stop service for all vehicle
maintenance needs and the following have been realised:
•

•
•

Improved the staff complement from 3 to
12 employees, including six students doing their
Level 1 learnerships through Merseta;
Grew his business performance from servicing ten
cars a day, to 20 cars per day;
The client base keeps on growing and includes
high profile clients such as the SAPS.

Advice to other SMMEs
“Anyone who wants to start their own business needs to
keep in mind that it takes patience, commitment and
sacrifice – it all pays off in the end!”
SEDA ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014
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Success stories (continued)

Hlabathe and Molehane CC t/a Siba’s Dairy
Location: Bothaville, Free State
Seda Branch: Fezile Dabi
Business offering: Distribution of dairy products

“I am very happy with all the help we
received from Seda. They helped me develop
a business plan and advised me on how to run
a business. With their help we now service
seven routes, managed to open another
branch, and manage our finances effectively.”
Margaret Hlabathe
40

SEDA SMALL ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Background
Siba’s Dairy was established in Bothaville in 2007
by Samuel Hlabathe and his business partner
Ms Molehane. Today the company has a second
branch in Kroonstad; a permanent staff of 15
employees; and a fleet of six delivery vehicles
which are used to distribute dairy products from
a supplier in Klerksdorp to eight towns in the
northern Free State.
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The challenge
Having featured as a ‘success story’ two years previously,
Siba’s Dairy reached a point where the knock-on effect of
its aging vehicle fleet threatened to derail its sustainability.
High vehicle maintenance costs and the inability to deliver
reliably and on time, threatened not only the contract
with their supplier, but also their turnover. This, in turn,
lead to the very real possibility that it would not be able
to meet its monthly expenditures, posing a danger to the
livelihoods of Siba’s 15 employees unless something could
be done to turn the situation around. Siba’s Dairy turned
to Seda, with whom it had a longstanding relationship,
for advice and assistance.
Seda’s intervention
A critical planning exercise (CPE) was conducted to get
to the root of the problem and a turnaround strategy
was put in place. The CPE revealed the need to replace
the vehicle fleet, either through lease or instalment sale
agreements, in order to reduce maintenance costs and
improve delivery times. This would lead to a significant

part

b

improvement in turnover. The need was also identified
for improved branding to increase visibility and compete
more effectively.
The result
• The business acquired two new delivery vehicles,
allowing it to service more towns per day than
previously;
• The business managed to retain the services of all
15 employees;
• Siba’s turnover more than doubled during the
period, from R611,011 in 2012 to R1,414,564
in 2013. From a loss of R3,572 in 2012, Siba’s
reflected a profit of R111,066 in 2013.
Advice to other SMMEs
“I know of many people who want to start their own
businesses. I advise them to approach Seda, their
consultants will come out to your business to assist
you,” says Margaret.
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Success stories (continued)

Amphiguard Brickyard CC
Location: Lofdal 42, Trichardsdal, Maruleng, Limpopo
Seda branch: Mopani
Business offering: Manufacture of bricks

“I received the best service ever from Seda.
They did not only help me with much needed
machinery, but gave me the opportunity to see
how other brickyards operate. Seda continued
to send business opportunities my way, which
allowed me to create work opportunities for 65
people from my local community.”
Tshepiso Mametja
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Background
Tshepiso Mametja launched her brickmaking
business in March 2010, manufacturing maxi and
stock cement bricks, as well as interlock and bevel
paving bricks.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

The challenge
Amphiguard began operations with one brickmaking
machine, capable of producing 1,000 bricks per day
and the quality and strength of these bricks were not
known since the bricks had not been tested. Increasing
demand placed pressure on the small business to increase
its capacity, but when the owner approached Seda for
assistance, it also became clear that there was an urgent
need for Financial Management Training in order to keep
financial records and manage income and expenditure.
Seda’s intervention
An assessment was undertaken resulting in a number
of recommendations and interventions. Financial
Management Training was arranged for Tshepiso. The bricks
were sent to the SABS for product testing and access to
technology was arranged through the Technology Transfer
Programme, for the purchase of additional brickmaking
machines. In addition, signage and promotional materials
were recommended to improve visibility.

part
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The outcome
• Brick samples sent to the SABS for testing,
revealed excellent compliance to PM3 strength;
• The Technology Transfer Fund agreed to make
brickmaking machinery, to the value of R407,000
available to Amphiguard, thereby increasing
capacity;
• Branding and promotional materials were
developed and contracts for the supply of bricks
were secured with large retail outlets such as Cash
Build, Magic Build and Build It;
• Financial management improved and records
reflected an increase in business turnover;
• Amphiguard was able to create 15 additional jobs;
• Tshepiso was nominated and won the 2012 Woman
of the Year Award in the Construction category.
Advice to other SMMEs
“When starting your own business, it takes patience
and dedication. You cannot simply sit back and expect
opportunities to come your way. I went to Seda for
assistance, they did not come to me”, says Tshepiso.
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Success stories (continued)

Ndizwenezwo Business Enterprise CC
Location: Tshitomboni Village, South of Thoyandou, Limpopo
Seda branch: Vhembe
Business offering: Production of cash crops

“The assistance received from Seda,
especially with regards to marketing our
business, assisted in landing bigger contracts
as well as funding. My business continues to
grow, and I need to put additional resources and
infrastructure in place to address demand.”
Prudence Manala
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Background
Ndizwenezwo Business Enterprise was established
in 2004 as a construction company. When one of the
members resigned in 2008, the remaining member,
Ms Prudence Manala, decided the time was ripe to
venture into agriculture. With a 10 ha piece of land
available, the agricultural endeavour proceeded,
producing cabbages, butternuts, tomatoes and
chillies. Realising that the need existed to explore
larger agricultural markets, Prudence approached
Seda to assist.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

•

•

•

The challenge
In the process of exploring larger markets it became clear
that to adequately service larger markets, it would be
necessary to increase production and to achieve this,
additional resources would be required. Prudence simply
did not have the finances to cover the costs of additional
machinery and materials.
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Using the loan, Ndizwenezwo debushed additional
tracts of land on its holding; drilled a borehole
to ensure a regular water supply; and purchased
farming equipment, a generator and seedlings;
Production increased, allowing the business to
supply not only the local informal market, but
also Pick n Pay and Spar in Thohoyandou and the
Johannesburg City Deep Market;
Ndizwenezwo now has an estimated annual
turnover of R297,000 and employs six permanent
employees and eight seasonal employees.

Advice to other SMMEs
“Approach Seda from the get-go, you do not have to go
through the start-up process on your own,” says Prudence.

Seda’s intervention
Seda assisted with the development of a business plan
and an application for funding. A potential funder was
identified and the plan and application were submitted
through De Beers Venetia Mine to Anglo Gold Zimele
Community Fund. Seda’s business advisor facilitated
meetings with the Community Fund officials and assisted
with presentations.
The outcomes
• Based on the business plan, Anglo Gold Zimele
Community Fund agreed to provide a business loan
to the value of R179,889.50;
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Success stories (continued)

Forest Fairies Sweet Company (Pty) Ltd
Location: Durban North, KwaZulu-Natal
Seda branch: uMgungundlovu
Business offering: Manufacture of confectionery
Background

“We appreciate the wonderful service and
advice we receive from Seda. They are
always available and ready to help The food
safety and costing training and advice had a
significant impact on our business. Thank you!”
Thejes Khan
46
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Forest Fairies is a family-owned sweet business that
manufactures a variety of confectionery including
nougat, peanut and chocolate-coated products.
Having started business as a sole proprietor in
2003, the business registered as a private company
in 2013, with a factory area of 600 m2, supplying
large hotel groups and hotels in Pretoria, Cape
Town and Durban.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

The challenge
Having lost one of its major clients, Forest Fairies turned
to Seda for assistance to improve its business operations,
and identify weaknesses that were preventing it from
delivering quality products and growing.
Seda’s intervention
An assessment of the business was undertaken by a
Seda Business Advisor. A costing and pricing exercise
commenced to ascertain the exact cost to produce each
individual type of sweet so as to establish the correct
pricing. This revealed that some product lines were in
fact under-priced and therefore loss bearing. At the same
time it was established which product lines were the
most profitable. ISO 22000 Food Safety standards were
implemented, providing a framework within which to
address process flow, product quality and maintenance
and to manage wastage.

•
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Average annual turnover increased from
R6,204,612 to R7,539,168, an increase of just
over 20%.

Advice to other SMMEs
“If you have a business idea, approach your local Seda
office for assistance in starting your business and
implementing efficient business processes,” says Thejes.

The result
• A pricing system was implemented taking into
account product costs and production capacity
and this now forms the basis for financial target
planning;
• The implementation of ISO 22000 resulted in
improved process flow, a verifiable system for
quality management and a decrease in wastage
from 5% to 1%;
• Training of employees in the ISO 22000
system improved skills and resulted in all
employees becoming conversant with the entire
manufacturing chain, from start to finish;
• The business was able to sustain all 43 jobs over
the period;
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Success stories (continued)

Seaqual CC
Location: Knysna, Western Cape
Stp: Quality and Standards
Business offering: Manufacture and assembly of
drainage products for the plumbing industry

“We found that Seda’s consultants go out of
their way to provide top levels of service. The
advice they offer is well researched. Seda
representatives and consultants are equipped
to empower small businesses such as ourselves.
We appreciate working with Seda, which is why
we keep our relationships with our nominated
service providers and Seda consultants as
healthy and strong as possible.”
Tandy Calder
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Background
Seaqual was established 1993 in Knysna by a plumber
with 37 years’ experience and big dreams. The
company manufactures its own range of commercial
and domestic drainage products. It also designs,
manufactures and supplies innovative pipe anchors
used to secure plumbing and electrical pipes to any
surface. The company initially supplied its products
to local hardware stores and building contractors,
but wished to expand its business footprint.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

Seaqual now supplies its products throughout Southern
Africa, and is the sole distributor of a number of
international brands, including Reln (Australia), Mufle
(Italy), and Erkon (Turkey) in the region.
The challenge
In order to sell its products in Massmart-owned trading
brands, such as Builders Warehouse, Sequal needed a
certified Quality Management System in place.
Seda’s intervention
Seda assisted Sequal with the development of its Quality
Management System in line with the ISO 9001: 2008
quality management standard. Seda also helped with
the implementation of the standard, as well as provided
training on it. Sequal completed its stage 1 SABS audit,
and the second stage will commence shortly.
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The outcomes
• Sequal is now listed as a Massmart supplier and
supplies its products to Builders Warehouse,
Builders Trade and the Spar Group;
• Since ISO 9001 is an international standard,
Seaqual’s high quality standards made it possible
to register the company in Australia.
Advice to other SMMEs
“The advice we would offer to any individual or partnership
wanting to start their own business is ‘speak to your local
Seda consultant’. It is free, fair and empowering, not
only from a financial point of view, but also in terms
of legal advice, marketing and sales advice, as well
as educational assistance. To date, we have referred
three small companies in our area as well as a small
manufacturer in Cape Town to Seda,” says Tandy.
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Success stories (continued)

Lulu’s Supplies and Distributors CC
Location: Nelspruit, Mpumalanga
Seda branch: Ehlanzeni
Business offering: Supply of branded hospital linen,
drapery, corporate and protective apparel

“The services provided by Seda,
such as training and assistance in the
implementation of our quality management
system, led to significant operational
improvements in our business.”
Lulu Letswele
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Background
Lulu Letswele and her children, Cliff and Patience,
registered their Close Corporation in 2001. With
five permanent employees, and their products
primarily aimed at the healthcare sector, the
business made gradual inroads into the market. The
fact that the business has a high BBBEE compliance
rating has given it a competitive advantage over
other small suppliers operating in the clothing and
textiles sector.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

•
•

•

The challenge
By 2009, the business owners realised that the business
needed to grow. It was unclear how they should go about
this and they approached Seda for assistance. An initial
assessment revealed a number of challenges. Payment
cycles were long, which put pressure on working capital.
Production capacity was limited which meant that delivery
was not always on time. Quality management systems and
procedures were insufficient, which meant that products
were not always according to client specification. And
finally, insufficient marketing activities limited their
access to new markets and clients.
Seda’s intervention
• Business and financial management skills
training was provided to assist the owners
with understanding cash flow management,
compliance, business growth, and sustainability,
among other aspects;
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Quality awareness training was conducted;
A Seda consultant was appointed to assist
the business with the implementation of a
formal quality management system in line with
ISO 9001:2008;
Marketing material was developed.

The result
• Business and quality management systems were
implemented;
• The acquisition of additional machinery and
equipment led to improved productivity and the
fixed asset base grew from R659,719 in 2009 to
R846,207 in 2013;
• Aggressive marketing activities, good
marketing practices and entrenched quality
standards allowed the business to increase its
client base;
• Seven more permanent positions were created
bringing the number of permanent employees to
12, including the owners;
• Revenue improved from R1,406,897 in 2012 to
R1,811,802 in 2013;
• Improved business and quality management
practices, increased productivity, and better
inventory controls resulted in Lulu’s Supplies and
Distributors experiencing a 42% growth in net
profit margin since 2012.
Advice to other SMMEs
“In order to start and successfully fund a business, one
must have a passion for that particular field and be
prepared to put in the necessary finance and time to
grow your business and make it a success,” says Lulu.
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Success stories (continued)

Medical Diagnostech (Pty) Ltd
Location: Brackenfell, Western Cape
Seda branch: Cape Winelands
Business offering: Manufacture of medical diagnostic
test kits

“I received excellent service from Seda.
Thomas assisted me with exactly what I
needed at the time, and the funding I received
came in very handy in growing my business.”
Ashley Uys
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Background
As a qualified biotechnologist, Ashley Uys registered
his first business, Real World Diagnostics, in March
2010. He later formed Medical Diagnostech as
the production arm of his business. The company
manufactures disposable medical test kits, which
use blood, urine or saliva to test for HIV, malaria,
pregnancy, or evidence of drug abuse. The products
are known as rapid point of care test kits and
provide results within 15 minutes. All products are
sold locally, except the malaria test kit which is
exported via a distributor to 25 countries.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

The challenge
Medical Diagnostech approached Seda for assistance in
growing the business. A Seda Business Advisor assisted
with a CPE assessment, including a financial analysis. It
became evident that the only way to grow the business
was to increase sales and this could be achieved by
supplying products directly to the global market, rather
than through a distributor.
Seda’s intervention
In order to supply the global market with medical
products, the company needed to become compliant with
ISO 13485:2003, a quality standard specifically pertaining
to medical devices. Seda assisted the company in attaining
the certification, which in turn brought it a step closer to
being able to become registered as a preferred supplier
by the World Health Organization (WHO).

•

•
•
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ISO 13485:2003 certification has allowed Medical
Diagnostech to participate in, and pass, the first
phase of the WHO evaluation of malaria tests,
towards becoming an approved supplier – the
second phase is now under way;
Annual turnover grew by 25% in one year;
Ashley was named as one of the ‘30 Under 30:
Africa’s Best Young Entrepreneurs’ on the
Forbes List.

Advice to other SMMEs
“When starting your own business you need to identify
opportunities in the market. Then analyse and understand
your identified market. What you offer needs to be
unique and different. To grow a sustainable business
you need to identify rewards (for example government
programmes such as Seda) as well as risks in pursuing
these rewards,” says Ashley.

The result
• Sales increased to the extent that additional
production was required, necessitating the
appointment of an additional eight employees –
the company now employs 25 people;
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Success stories (continued)

Number1 Muesli
Location: Port Elizabeth, Eastern Cape
Seda branch: Nelson Mandela Bay
Business offering: Manufacture of muesli and mueslirelated products

“When I approached Seda it was at a time
when I really needed help. I couldn’t have
done it without them at that stage. They
helped to turn ideas into business realities.”
Lize Fouche
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Background
Lize Fouche had called on Seda for assistance in
2005, when she launched a guest house in Port
Elizabeth. Having studied culinary arts, with a
particular focus on product development, and
having developed an outstanding muesli recipe,
she decided to launch a new business venture,
Number1 Muesli.

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION

The challenge
Lize had an outstanding product, but she needed
mentorship and funding to grow the business and develop
appropriate packaging for the product. She also needed
advice on how to go about marketing the product.

•

Branding and signage interventions helped
legitimise the product to the extent that it
competes well with other long-standing products;

•

Seda’s intervention
• The Kirkwood Wildsfees was identified as an
appropriate event for the launch of the product
in early 2013. Assistance was provided in the
development of packaging and appropriate
marketing material;

The successful loan application to Anglo
American enabled the development of new
products, including a health cereal, a meal
replacement range and a luxury muesli which is
successfully being exported to the US;

•

In addition to the original factory in Alexandria,
a new 2,000 m2 factory is being built at Coega
for Number 1 Muesli to rent and occupation is
estimated to be September 2014;

•

An application to Anglo American for a
development loan to fund the development of
new products, and an application to the Industrial
Development Corporation (IDC) to assist in
funding a new factory at Coega (the industrial
development zone near Port Elizabeth);

•

Funding from the IDC is being used to
furnish the factory with state-of-the-art
production equipment and the new facility
will be able to produce 600 tons of muesli
per month;

•

Enlisted Number1 Muesli in its 80/20 Initiatives
Programme which provides financial assistance
in the areas of product development,
productivity improvement, and quality
development. Specifically this was dedicated
to financial software; packaging development
and design for the export market; nutritional
testing and legislation approvals; and project
management and engineering fees for the set-up
of the new factory.

•

In addition to the 34 permanent employees
already working at the Alexandria factory,
150 jobs will be created at the Coega factory;

•

The management team of two employees
has grown to eight, seven of whom are based
in Port Elizabeth and one sales assistant in
Johannesburg;

•

Number1 Muesli’s profit has grown by 42% since
Seda became involved.

The outcomes
• The successful product launch at the Kirkwood
Wildsfees resulted in the sale of a massive 2 tons
of muesli;
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Lize has been named one of the
‘Top 40 Under 40’
business people by the
Nelson Mandela Business Chamber
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PART C
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Corporate Governance embodies processes and systems by which public entities are directed, controlled and held to
account. In addition to legislative requirements based on a public entity’s enabling legislation, corporate governance
with regard to public entities is applied through the precepts of the PFMA and run in tandem with the principles
contained in the King Report on Governance for South Africa and the King Code of Governance Principles (King III).
Parliament, the Executive and the Boards of Seda are responsible for corporate governance.

Executive Authority
The Ministry of Trade and Industry is the executive authority of Seda and performs an oversight role which rests
largely on the prescripts of the PFMA. As Seda’s executive authority, the dti has the power to appoint and dismiss
Board members and the CEO. It also ensures that the appropriate mix of executive and non-executive directors is
appointed and that directors have the necessary skills to guide Seda. During the 2013/14 financial year the Seda Board
was reduced in size by the Executive Authority, and the CEO of sefa, Seda’s sister organisation, was appointed as a
permanent member of the Board in order to foster better relations between the two organisations.
Seda submits the following reports to the executive authority on an annual basis: strategic, business and annual
performance plans for approval together with budgets to complement Seda’s strategic plans. During the 2013/14
financial year Seda submitted three quarterly performance reports and an Annual Performance Report 2013/14 as
required by the executive authority.
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Accounting authority – the Board
Introduction
The Seda Board of Directors is the accounting authority
of the agency, and constitutes a fundamental base for
the application of corporate governance principles. Seda
is headed and controlled by an effective and efficient
Board, comprising the appropriate mix of executive and
non-executive directors representing the necessary skills
to strategically guide the agency. The majority of the
members are non-executive to ensure independent and
objective decision-making. The Board has an absolute
responsibility for the performance of the agency and is
fully accountable to the executive authority for such
performance.

only the financial aspects of the business, but also the
impact that business operations have on the environment
and the society within which Seda operates.
Risk management is a key responsibility of the Board,
and it ensures that Seda has an effective risk-based
Internal Audit Function and effective and independent
Audit Committee in place. The Board is also responsible
for information technology (IT) governance and ensuring
that Seda’s ethics are managed effectively.

Role of the Board

As the accounting authority of Seda, the Board evaluates
the performance of the CEO and Chairperson and makes
recommendations to the Minister of Trade and Industry
regarding the appointment of the CEO.

The Board acts as the focal point for, and custodian of
corporate governance by managing its relationship with
Management, the dti and other Seda stakeholders in an
ethically sound manner, in effect managing stakeholder
perceptions of Seda.

The Board needs to ensure that Seda complies with
applicable laws and considers adherence to non-binding
rules and standards. It also confirms the integrity of
Seda’s Annual Report.

It appreciates that strategy, risk, performance and
sustainability are inseparable, and gives effect to this
by contributing to and approving the strategy and ensuring
that it will result in sustainable outcomes; satisfying
itself that the strategy and business plans do not give
rise to risks that have not been thoroughly assessed by
Management; identifying key performance and risk areas;
and considering sustainability as a business opportunity
that guides strategy formulation.

Each director acts in the best interest of the agency
and adheres to legal standards of conduct and agreed
procedures. Directors disclose real or perceived conflicts
to the Board, which deals with them accordingly.
Furthermore, directors deal in securities only in
accordance with the policy adopted by the Board. To
perform their duties, the directors are allowed to source
independent advice at the cost of the agency.

The Board ensures that Seda, is and is seen to be, a
responsible corporate citizen by having regard to not

The Seda Board of Directors acknowledges the need for
a Board Charter, as recommended in King III. The charter
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Board Charter
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implemented by the Seda Board recognises the provisions of the National Small Business Act (Act No. 102 of 1996),
as amended, the PFMA and any other applicable law or regulatory provision.

Composition of the Board
The Board comprises six (6) non-executive directors, with the majority being independent directors, appointed by
the Minister through a formal process as laid down in the Act. The CEO is an ex officio member of the Board.

Name

Date
Desig- apDate
nation pointed resigned Qualification

No. of
Other committees meetings
Area of expertise Board directorships or task teams
attended

Dr Ivor
Zwane

Board 2010
Chairperson

• PhD Chemistry, University • Business
of the Witwatersrand
strategy and
• MS Chemistry, University
organisational
of Notre Dame (USA)
management
• BSc (Hons) Chemistry,
• Stakeholder
University of Fort Hare
relations
• BSc Computer Science
management
and Chemistry, University • Social
of Fort Hare
entrepreneurship
• Mentorship and
coaching

Flavius Mareka FET
College, Boas Trust,
Vaal Education
Trust, Executive
Director of
Setenex Pty Ltd

Strategy and
Board – 9
Organisational
Performance
SOPC – 5
Committee (SOPC)

Dr Marius
Venter

Board 2010
Deputy
Chairperson

• DCom Economics, Rand
Afrikaans University
• MMed Economics, Rand
Afrikaans University
• BCom Law, Rand
Afrikaans University
• BCom (Hons) Economics,
Rand Afrikaans University

Seda only

Human Resources
and Remuneration
Committee
(REMCO)
(24 Oct 2013 first
meeting)

• Economic
development
• Strategic
planning
• Entrepreneurship
• Project
management
• Organisational
development
• Change
management

Board – 7
REMCO – 2
ARC – 1

Audit and Risk
Committee (ARC)
(23 Jan 2014 first
meeting)
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Accounting authority – the Board (continued)

Date
Desig- apDate
nation pointed resigned Qualification

Name

Mr Dennis MemThabaneng ber

Ms
Precious
Lugayeni
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Member

2008

2008

No. of
Other committees meetings
Area of expertise Board directorships or task teams
attended

• MSc Management Arthur
D Little, Boston USA
• BCom (Hons) Business
Economics, University of
Zululand
• BCom Business
Economics, Economics,
Industrial Psychology
• NDip Medical Technology,
Pathology Laboratory
Services/King Edward Viii
Hospital, Durban

• Infrastructure
Seda only
development
and funding
• Entrepreneurial
development
• Business
management
• Business
strategy
• Corporate
governance

Chairperson – SOPC Board – 9
(22 May 2014 first
meeting)
SOPC – 1

• Master in Education
(Economics Education),
University of Zululand
• BEd (Cum Laude),
University of Zululand
• HDip Education,
University of Natal
• BA (obtained in the First
Class), University of
Zululand

• Education and
training
• Economic
development
• Trade and
investment
• Organisational
strategy

Chairperson REMCO Board – 9
(24 Oct 2013 first
meeting)
SOPC – 5
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SmartExchange

ARC
ARC – 3
(Joint ARC and
Finance Committee REMCO – 6
(FINCO) 24 Jul
2013)
REMCO
(21 Oct 2013 first
meeting)

SOPC

REMCO – 3
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Mr
Johannes
Lesejane
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Date
Desig- apDate
nation pointed resigned Qualification

No. of
Other committees meetings
Area of expertise Board directorships or task teams
attended

Invitee 2009

• Corporate
governance
• Internal and
external
auditing
• Enterprise risk
management
• Financial
accounting
• Management
accounting
• Taxation
• Mergers and
acquisition
• Business
continuity

Export Credit
Insurance
Corporation Ltd
(ECIC); National
Treasury Audit
Committee

• Corporate
finance
• Risk
management
• Credit
management
• Corporate
governance
• Strategic
planning
• Business
continuity
• Small business
development
• Private equity
• Investment
banking

Seda only and Ex-Of- SOPC
ficio of Sefa
ARC

Mr
MemThakhani ber
Makhuvha

1 Nov
2013

• CA (SA)
• Fellow Chartered
Management Accountant
(UK)
• BCompt (Hons)
• BCom
• Certificate in Control
Self-Assessment (CCSA)

New
• MCom Financial
Appoint- Management, University
ment
of Johannesburg
• BCompt (Hons), Unisa
• BCom Accounting,
University of Venda
• Leadership Development
Programme, GIBS
International training
exposure includes:
• Special Global
Institute of Leadership
Development (GILD)
Programme in Palm
Desert, California, USA
• Advanced Risk and
Portfolio Management;
Risk Capital and
Operational Risk
Management training
workshops, conferences
and seminars in
UK, Belgium and
Switzerland

Chairperson ARC

Board – 7
ARC – 5

Board – 5
SOPC – 2
ARC – 2
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Accounting authority – the Board (continued)

Name
Mr
Mojalefa
Mohoto

62

Date
Desig- apDate
nation pointed resigned Qualification

No. of
Other committees meetings
Area of expertise Board directorships or task teams
attended

Repre- 2008
sentative of
the dti

• Chief Director
of Enterprise
development.
At the
Department
of Trade and
Industry.
• Vast SMME
experience,
skills, and
expertise.
• Director:
Enterprise
development.
• Department
of Trade and
Industry
• Manager: Policy
co-ordination.
• Department of
Labour

• Masters in Public
and Development
Management – Wits
• Postgraduate Diploma
in Development
Management – Wits
• BA Degree – Vista

SEDA SMALL ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

• Non-executive
SOPC
Director: Seda
• Non-executive
Director: Franchise
Association of
South Africa (FASA)
• Committee
Member South
African Chamber
of Commerce
and Industry
Small Business
Committee
• Board member:
Co-operatives
Incentive Scheme
• Panel member:
Technology for
Women in Business
(TWIB)
• Chairperson:
Risk Capital
Facility Steering
Committee (IDC
SMME programme)

Board – 9
SOPC – 3

governance

Outgoing Board members and their designation
In August 2013, the term of five Board members came to an
end. The outgoing Board members and their designations
are as follows:
•

•
•

•

•

Mr Linda Mngomezulu: Board Chairperson, Strategy
and Organisational Performance Committee
member
Ms Rene Kenosi: Finance Committee Chairperson
and Executive Board member
Ms Thokozile Nkambule: Human Resources and
Remuneration Committee Chairperson and
Executive Board member
Mr Vusumzi Skosana: Strategy and Organisational
Performance Committee member, Audit and Risk
Committee member
Ms Fatima Habib: Strategy and Organisational
Performance Committee Member

New appointments
Mr Thakhani Makhuvha was appointed by the Minister to
the Board of Directors in November 2013.
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Resignations
Adv. Tshidi Mayimele-Hashatse resigned from the Board
in December 2013; and Dr Tebogo Mokgoro resigned in
January 2014. Ms Hlonela Lupuwana the CEO and ex
officio member of the Board resigned with effect from
31 December 2013.
Attendance of Board meetings
Board members must attend all scheduled meetings,
including meetings called on an ad hoc basis for special
matters, unless prior apology, with reasons, has been
submitted to the Chairperson or Seda Secretariat. Members
of Senior Management and professional advisors may
attend Board meetings by invitation, but may not vote.
If the nominated Chairperson is absent from a meeting or
resigns from the Board, the Deputy Chairperson assumes
the role of the Chairperson with immediate effect until
such time that the Chairperson is available or a new
Chairperson is appointed by the Minister. If both the
Chairperson and the Deputy Chairperson are absent from
a meeting, the members present elect a person to act
as Chairperson among themselves.
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Accounting authority – the Board (continued)

Board committees
Committee
Human Resources and
Remuneration
Strategy and
Organisational
Performance

Audit and Risk

No. of Meetings Held
9 May 2013–13 March 2014: 7 meetings
13 March 2014 was a joint meeting with SOPC

No. of Members Names of Members
4
Precious Lugayeni: Chairperson
Sipho Zikode: Acting CEO
Dennis Thabaneng
Marius Venter
17 May 2013–30 January 2014: 6 meetings
7
Dennis Thabaneng: Chairperson
Sipho Zikode: Acting CEO
13 March 2014 was a joint meeting with REMCO
Ivor Zwane
Thakhani Makhuvha
Mojalefa Mohoto
Ephraim Baloyi: Co-opted Member
Precious Lugayeni
1 March 2013–23 January 2014: 5 meetings
6
Joe Lesejane: Chairperson
Sipho Zikode: Acting CEO
24 July 2013 was a joint meeting with Finance
Dennis Thabaneng
Thakhani Makhuvha
Marius Venter
Koos Roelofse: Co-opted Member

Remuneration of Board members
Board members: 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014
No
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
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Name
F Habib#
R Kenosi#
PF Lugayeni
HN Lupuwana^
TR Makhuvha^^
F Mayimele-Hashaste##
LJ Mngomezulu##
M Mohoto*
T Mokgoro
TB Nkambule#
V Skosana#
DMN Thabaneng
M Venter
S Zikode~*
I Zwane

SubsisRePerforDirector
tence
Cell phone imbursemance
fees
allowance Travelling allowance ments
Salary
bonus
TOTAL
34,672
80
3,650
38,402
58,930
160
3,285
62,375
139,278
1,280
11,753
2,370
154,681
760 1,418,679
336,000 1,755,439
16,226
160
912
17,298
78,531
560
6,898
830
86,819
122,506
480
7,446
130,432
54,557
160
4,380
59,097
76,840
960
2,628
80,428
41,743
240
3,321
45,304
95,866
480
16,458
112,804
70,366
960
6,023
77,349
117,974
720,
13,906
132,600
907,489
6,240
80,660
3,960 1,418,679
336,000 2,753,028
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Board sub-committees members: 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014
No
16
17
18

Name
E Baloyi*
MJ Lesejane
K Roelofse*

TOTAL

Director
fees

73,015
73,015

SubsisRetence
Cell phone imburseallowance Travelling allowance ments
240
3,285
240
3,285
-

980,504

6,480

83,945

-

-

Salary

-

Performance
bonus

3,960 1,418,679

-

TOTAL

76,540
76,540

336,000 2,829,568

*

These members did not receive remuneration due to being employed elsewhere in the Public Sector.
Term of service ended on 31 August 2013.
##
Resigned end August 2013.
** Mzolo, M resigned on 7 June 2013.
^ HN Lupuwana, Executive Board member, resigned on 31 December 2013.
~ S Zikode, Executive Board member. Appointed as Acting CEO 1 January 2014.
^^ TR Makhuvha appointed 1 November 2013.
#

Risk management
The Board is accountable for the process of risk
management and the effectiveness of internal controls
and for this reason has devoted considerable efforts
to ensuring the practice of responsible, pro-active and
sound risk management.
There is a formally defined Risk Management Policy and
Strategy in place, designed to ensure that risk management
practices are maintained at leading practice levels.
There is an on-going process for identifying, evaluating
and managing the significant risks faced by Seda.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the governance of
risk, while Management is responsible for the management
thereof. The Audit and Risk Committee’s role is to provide
oversight and assurance to the Board regarding the
effectiveness of risk management processes. The primary
responsibility of the Audit and Risk Committee is to assist
the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing a
framework for managing risks throughout the agency.
There is an adequate system of internal controls in place
to mitigate significant risks faced by Seda. The system
is designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of
failure or to maximise opportunities to achieve strategic
objectives.
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Internal Audit and the Audit and Risk Committee
The Board recognises the need to oversee internal controls within the agency. In accordance with the approved
Internal Audit Charter, Internal Audit reviews the systems and management controls to provide assurance on whether
Seda’s network of risk management, control and governance processes, as designed and represented by Management,
are adequate and functioning in a manner to ensure that:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Risks are appropriately identified and managed;
Interaction with the various governance groups within Seda and/or government occur as appropriate;
Significant financial, managerial, and operating information is accurate, reliable, and timely;
The actions of employees are in compliance with policies, standards, procedures and applicable laws and
regulations;
Resources are acquired economically, used efficiently and are adequately protected;
Programmes, plans and objectives are achieved effectively;
Quality and continuous improvement are fostered in Seda’s control process; and
Significant legislative and/or regulatory issues impacting Seda are recognised and addressed appropriately.

The overall objective of the committee is to assist the Seda Board in discharging its duties relating to the safeguarding
of assets, the operation of adequate systems and controls, risk assessment and assurance, the assessment of goingconcern status and the reviewing of financial information.

Meeting attendance
ARC Member

Role

R Kenosi

Member

P

P

21 October 2013 23 January 2014
P

End of term

J Lesejane

Chairperson

P

P

P

P

P Lugayeni

Member

P

P

P

Changed membership

H Lupuwana

CEO

T Makhuvha (new appointment) N/A
T Mayimele-Hashatse
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27 May 2013

24 July 2013
(Joint meeting
with FINCOM)

P

P

P

N/A

N/A

N/A

P

A

P

Member

Resigned
P
Resigned

K Roelofse

Member

P

P

P

P

V Skosana

Member

P

P

P

End of term

D Thabaneng

Member

P

P

P

P (changed membership)

D Venter

Member

P

A

A

P (changed membership)

S Zikode (new appointment)

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

I Zwane

Member

P

P

P

SEDA SMALL ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

P
P (as an invitee)

Compliance with laws and regulations
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During the financial year, the Board approved a Compliance Policy, Framework and Manual, all of which seek to
instil strict adherence to South African laws and regulations. These tools reside in the Legal, Corporate Governance
and Compliance Unit and are used as the main guide when undertaking operational activities. Compliance reports
are submitted to all Audit and Risk Committee and Board meetings as standard agenda items to ensure continuous
monitoring of compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

Fraud and corruption
The Board recognises that fraud prevention and detection are an essential part of internal control. However, internal
control, internal audits and external audits alone cannot detect fraud in an entity. For this reason, the Board, through
Management, has put in place a Fraud Prevention Plan, which includes fraud risk registers and fraud risk plans that
address the fraud risks identified.
The Seda Fraud Hotline, which is managed by an independent service provider, is available to both employees and
the general public for the reporting of fraud and corruption activities. The Audit and Risk Committee reviews the
report received from the hotline and the action taken by Management, and reports to the Board on the results of
fraud and corruption investigations.
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Audit and Risk Committee Report
We are pleased to present our report for the financial
year ended 31 March 2014.

Audit and Risk Committee responsibility
The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has complied
with its responsibilities arising from Section 76 (4)(d)
and 77 of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 3.1. The
committee also reports that it has adopted appropriate
formal terms of reference as its Audit and Risk Committee
Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with
this charter and has discharged all its responsibilities
as contained therein, except that it has not reviewed
changes in accounting policies and practices.

The effectiveness of internal control

Internal Audit has also investigated allegations raised
through the executive authority to the accounting
authority. This matter is being dealt with by the accounting
authority. We have ensured that all matters raised are
satisfactorily dealt with.
The following areas of concern were raised with the
accounting authority:
•
•

Recruitment process; and
Business Continuity Plan and the Disaster Recovery
Plan in the provincial offices.

Management is attending to both these matters.

Our review of the findings of the Internal Audit work
conducted, which was based on the risk assessments
conducted in the agency, revealed certain weaknesses,
which were then raised with Seda. We have also ensured
that all significant internal and external audit findings
are regularly followed up on and are resolved.

In-year management and monthly/
quarterly reports

The following Internal Audit work was successfully
completed during the year under review:

Evaluation of Financial Statements

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
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Supply chain management;
Risk management;
Performance information;
Payroll and leave;
IT general controls;
Compliance review on the Annual Financial
Statements;
Fraud risk controls; and
CEO Awards.
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Seda has submitted monthly and quarterly reports to
the executive authority. These reports were jointly
reviewed with the Strategy and Organisation Performance
Committee (SOPC).

We have reviewed the Annual Financial Statements
prepared by Seda and are satisfied that they are a fair
reflection of the activities of the organisation. We have
also reviewed the competence of the Finance function
in providing effective financial reporting to Seda.

Risk management (including fraud risk
management)
We have also reviewed Seda’s risk management process
(including fraud risk) and Risk Management Policy.
During the year, the committee reviewed the risk

governance
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management reports and ensured that key risks are
effectively managed. The committee’s feedback and
recommendations on key risks plus have been escalated
at accounting authority level.

Auditor’s Report
We have reviewed Seda’s implementation plan for audit
issues raised in the prior year and we are satisfied that
the matters have been adequately resolved.
The Audit and Risk Committee concurs and accepts
the conclusions of the AGSA on the Annual Financial
Statements and is of the opinion that the audited Annual
Financial Statements be accepted and read together with
the report of the AGSA.

Motshwanedi Joe Lesejane
Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee
Date: 28 July 2014
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PART D
HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

Introduction
Overview of HR matters
Seda recognises that its people are an indispensable
driver of performance and that they hold the key to its
ability to operate efficiently. Seda therefore strives to
create a culture where its workforce can thrive, while
developing their own talents and delivering outstanding
service to clients.
The HR Strategic Plan seeks to align the agency’s workforce
with its vision of being the centre of excellence for small
enterprise development in South Africa. It is intended
to create an environment that continuously encourages
people to perform at their peak and champion the Seda
mandate. The plan focuses on the following aspects:
•

•

•

HR objectives are informed by the agency’s intent
to increase cost effectiveness, internal efficiencies
and institutional respectability of its operations;
The objectives are aimed at ensuring that HR
outcomes drive the desired culture by driving
values consistent with the agency’s mandate,
focusing on the change in the skills mix from
outputs to outcomes, and ensuring that HR
practices are not only aligned with legislative
requirements, but are accessible, predictable and
consistent; and
The HR Function needs to constantly examine its
systems, processes and practices across Seda’s
service delivery value chain so that they are
accessible, reliable and value adding.

Seda has embarked on the realignment of its resources
to support its strategic direction.
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HR mandate
The premise for the HR Unit’s existence is defined in
the Seda Operating Model as a core support service. Its
fundamental mandate is to:
•

•

•
•

•

Provide critical HR services, including talent
attraction and retention, employee engagement,
leadership development, performance rewards,
and health and wellness initiatives;
Drive a value-based culture in pursuit of service
excellence, cost efficiency and integrity and
subsequent results of culture fit;
Facilitate skills development and retention to
align with the realignment project HIPs;
Pay attention to a sustained operating model
through effective systems of succession planning,
skills pipeline generation and development; and
Enable Seda to create a legacy of skills and talent
for future EXCO leadership.

Priorities for the year and impact thereof
The key priorities for the year were to reduce the number
of vacancies and to align the agency’s structure with its
strategic intent. The two are inter-related and, as such,
the review of the agency’s structure meant that most
positions could not be filled. As a result, the vacancy
rate at the end of March 2014 was 16%, which was higher
than the market benchmark of 10%.

Workforce planning framework
Seda’s approach to workforce planning is based on the
development of a consolidated Annual Recruitment Plan,
based on divisional inputs. This is done in conjunction with
the drive towards efficient and modernised processes.
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Introduction (continued)

Through workforce planning, Seda identifies areas where
it needs to make skills investments to enable mandate
implementation.
The following workforce planning objectives were
adhered to:
•

Delivering Seda workforce planning to enable
human resource management by:
– Developing and implementing a framework
to enable human capital investment based on
supply patterns as well as demand challenges;
– Implementing applicable human capital
interventions (succession training, retention,
etc.) that are applicable to each investment
category (accelerate, growth, balance,
investment);
– Enabling the agency to retain and redeploy
employees in roles that are impacted by
strategic changes.

Seda’s employee value proposition is part of its strategy
to attract, nurture, engage and retain current and
prospective employees.
Embedded in this is the agency’s deliberate attempt
to achieve its strategic outcomes through its people,
while supporting them in meeting their personal career
aspirations. These include opportunities for employee
growth, learning and leadership, etc.

required by Seda and to comply with South African
labour laws.

Employee performance management
framework
Seda has an approved Performance and Reward Policy in
place, and in the past financial year improvements were
made to the Performance Management Development
System (PMDS).
At Seda, performance management not only entails the
assessment of employees’ performance in their jobs, but
also includes the alignment of individual goals with overall
organisational goals and keeping employees satisfied so
that they can be retained. Employees need to understand
how their jobs contribute to the success of the team,
the division and the entire organisation.
Without strategic performance management, employee
retention can become a major challenge. The Seda
Performance Management Development System has
transformed sporadic conversations into on-going dialogue
between managers and employees.

Employee Relations and Wellness Programme
The objective of the Employee Relations and Wellness
Programme is to create a work environment conducive
to effective employee relations, health and wellness.
This is done by:
•

HR continuously reviews the agency’s Employee Value
Proposition (EVP) to cater for diverse skills segments
and ensure that employees find it compelling to perform
and stay with Seda, as well as to attract external skills
72
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Developing a comprehensive health and wellness
agenda with wide-ranging solutions that address/
fit the desired organisational culture and result in
an engaged workforce;

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

•

•

Embedding employee relations (ER) procedures
and governance to harmonise the workplace and
foster respect for individual diversity; and
Positioning ER and health and wellness to leverage
legislative compliance and facilitate business
enhancing behaviour.

Seda’s wellness programme includes an HIV/AIDS
Management Programme and an Occupational Health
and Safety Programme.

Achievements and challenges
Seda’s dynamic operating environment necessitates
the need to constantly build capacity in critical areas
such as business advice and project management. The
Seda Learning Academy completed an assessment of all
Seda business advisors, which has identified areas for
improvement. It also provided much needed learning and
development interventions to enable individual growth
and organisational performance.
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Plans for the future
Seda believes that its value is created by its people.
To this end, the focus of the HR Function will be on
repositioning itself as a strategic business partner to the
rest of the agency. Key deliverables will include:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Development of a Competency Dictionary for
Seda;
Reviewing the HR structure to enable both the
strategic and operational excellence roles of HR;
Developing a Seda Employee Value Proposition
(EVP);
Reviewing the Remuneration Strategy and Policy;
Reviewing other HR policies in line with the new
positioning of HR in the agency; and
Introducing a 360-degree performance framework.
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Human resource oversight statistics
Personnel cost by programme/activity/objective
Total expenditure of
the entity
(R’000)

Personnel
expenditure
(R’000)

Personnel cost
as a % of total
expenditure

No. of
employees

Average personnel
cost per employee
(R’000)

National

313,573

56,964

18.17%

157

363

Province

307,896

132,826

43.14%

389

341

Total

621,469

189,790

30.54%

546

348

Personnel
expenditure
(R’000)

Personnel cost
as a % of total
expenditure

No. of
employees

Average personnel
cost per employee
(R’000)

Programme/
activity/objective

Personnel cost by salary band
Salary band
Top Management
Senior Management
Professional Qualified
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Total

5,361

0.86%

4

1,340

17,292

2.78%

21

823

124,230

19.99%

289

430

36,811

5.92%

175

210

6,097

3.21%

57

107

189,791

30.54%

546

348

Personnel
expenditure
(R’000)

% of performance
rewards to total
personnel cost

Performance rewards
Salary band
Top Management
Senior Management
Professional Qualified
Skilled

Semi-skilled
Total
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Performance
rewards
(R’000)
944

5,361

17.62%

2,154

17,292

12.46%

10,325

124,230

8.31%

3,423

36,811

19.40%

-

6,097

0.00%

16,847

189,791

8.88%
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Training costs
Programme
National Office Support
Provincial Network

Personnel
expenditure
(R’000)

Training
expenditure
(R’000)

71,034

500

153,207

1,134

Training
expenditure as a %
of personnel cost

No of
employees
trained

Average training
costs per employee
(R’000)

0.7%

43

12

2.74%

282

15

Employment and vacancies
Salary band
Top Management
Senior Management

2012/13
No. of employees

2013/14
No. of approved
positions

2013/14
No. of employees

2013/14
Vacancies

% vacancies

4

7

4

3

42.9

21

30

21

9

30.0

Professional Qualified

309

325

289

36

11.1

Skilled

196

224

175

49

21.9

59

73

57

16

21.9

589

659

546*

113

17.1

Semi-skilled
Total

* This includes 43 contract employees recorded against approved positions.

Senior Management vacancies are in the process of being filled – the CEO position was advertised, interviews were
conducted, a report was submitted to the dti, and the appointment is currently being finalised.
A candidate for the Executive Manager: Stp was sought, with consideration for employment equity requirements,
and head hunting was initiated with no success. The position was re-advertised and is in the process of being filled.
The HR Division is currently developing a Succession Plan and Retention Strategy to ensure that the current staff
are given an opportunity to compete for internal vacancies. This will ensure that, were possible, internal staff are
appointed in key positions.
Employment changes
The average period to fill a position is three months. Due to the realignment process, affected positions have been
vacant for more than three months.
The finalisation of the Retention Strategy is aimed at ensuring that Seda attracts and retains high calibre staff.
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Human resource oversight statistics (continued)

Salary Band
Top Management
Senior Management

Employment at
beginning of period

Appointments

Terminations

Employment at end of
the period

4

2

2

4

21

0

3

18

Professional Qualified

309

18

34

293

Skilled

196

17

40

173

59

5

6

58

Semi-skilled
Unskilled
Total

0

0

0

0

589

42

85

546

Reasons for staff leaving
Reasons
Death

% of total no of staff
leaving

Number
1

1.2

62

72.9

Dismissal

3

3.5

Retirement

3

3.5

Resignation

Ill health

0

0

16

18.8

Other

0

0

Total

85

100

Expiry of contract

Labour relations: misconduct and disciplinary action
Nature of disciplinary action

0

Written Warning

4

Final Written Warning
Dismissal

76

Number

Verbal Warning

SEDA SMALL ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

3
11

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

part

d

Equity target and employment equity status
MALE
African
Levels
Top Management
Senior Management
Professional Qualified
Skilled
Semi-skilled
Unskilled
Total

Current

Coloured

Target

3

1

Current

Indian

Target

0

Current

0

White

Target

0

0

Current

Target

0

0

6

8

2

3

1

1

1

2

142

148

13

20

3

4

11

25

22

35

0

5

2

3

0

0

6

10

1

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

179

202

16

28

6

8

12

27

FEMALE
African
Levels
Top Management
Senior Management
Professional Qualified
Skilled

Current
0

Total

Target
2

Current
0

Indian

Target
0

Current

White

Target

0

0

Current

Target

1

1

8

12

2

3

0

0

1

1

92

103

10

12

3

7

14

18

121

135

12

20

1

5

14

18

Semi-skilled
Unskilled

Coloured

52

3

4

0

0

1

1

46

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

267

304

27

39

4

12

31

39

DISABLED STAFF
Male
Levels

Current

Female
Target

Current

Target

Top Management

0

17

0

Senior Management

1

33

0

0
0

Professional qualified

3

50

0

29

Skilled

0

0

0

42
29

Semi-skilled

0

0

0

Unskilled

0

0

0

0

Total

4

100

0

100
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Report of the Auditor-General
REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO
PARLIAMENT ON THE SMALL ENTERPRISE
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY REPORT ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Introduction
1. I have audited the financial statements of the Small
Enterprise Development Agency set out on pages 82
to 117, which comprise the statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2014, the statement of
financial performance, statement of changes in net
assets, cash flow statement and the statement of
comparison of budget and actual amounts for the
year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.
Accounting authority’s responsibility for the
financial statements
2. The accounting authority is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with South African Standards
of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA
Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the
Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999
(Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal
control as the accounting authority determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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Auditor-General’s responsibility
3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on my audit. I conducted
my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act
of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA),
the General Notice issued in terms thereof and
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that I comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
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Report of the Auditor-General (continued)

Opinion
6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of the
Small Enterprise Development Agency as at 31 March
2014, and its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with SA Standards
of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued
in terms thereof, I report the following findings on the
reported performance information against predetermined
objectives for selected strategic objectives presented
in the annual performance report, non-compliance with
legislation, as well as internal control. The objective of
my tests was to identify reportable findings as described
under each subheading but not to gather evidence to
express assurance on these matters. Accordingly, I do
not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters:
Predetermined objectives
7. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the
usefulness and reliability of the reported performance
information for the following selected strategic
objective presented in the annual performance report
of the public entity for the year ended 31 March 2014:
• Strategic objective 1: Enhance the competitiveness
and capabilities of small enterprises through
coordinated services, programmes and products
on pages 28 to 29 and pages 32 to 34.
8. I evaluated the reported performance information
against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability.
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9. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported
performance information to determine whether
it was presented in accordance with the National
Treasury’s annual reporting principles and whether
the reported performance was consistent with the
planned objectives. I further performed tests to
determine whether indicators and targets were well
defined, verifiable, specific, measurable, time bound
and relevant, as required by the National Treasury’s
Framework for managing programme performance
information (FMPPI).
10. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance
information to determine whether it was valid,
accurate and complete.
11. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness
and reliability of the reported performance information
for the selected strategic objective.
Additional matter
Although I raised no material findings on the usefulness
and reliability of the reported performance information
for the selected objective, I draw attention to the
following matter:
Achievement of planned targets
12. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 28 to
34 for information on the achievement of the planned
targets for the year.
Compliance with legislation
I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the
entity had complied with applicable legislation regarding
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financial matters, financial management and other related
matters. My findings on material non-compliance with
specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the
General Notice issued in terms of the PAA, are as follows:
Annual financial statements.
13. The financial statements submitted for auditing were
not prepared in all material respects in accordance
with the requirements of section 55(1)(b) of the PFMA.
The auditors identified material misstatements in the
submitted financial statements in respect of revenue,
expenses, current assets and the disclosure note on
operating lease commitments, which management
subsequently corrected resulting in the financial
statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.
Internal control
14. I did not identify any significant deficiencies in
internal control.

Pretoria
31 July 2014
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Statement of financial performance
for the year ended 31 March 2014

Notes

Restated
2013
R

2014
R

Exchange revenue
12,354,399

11,764,748

14

-

260,719

Transfers from other government entities

2

576,979,000

566,922,630

External earnings

2

51,778,673

54,667,610

Assets received as grants

2

-

196,018

Total revenue

2

641,112,072

633,811,725

Personnel cost

3

(224,241,254)

(221,372,465)

Programme, projects and other administrative expenses

3

(378,956,031)

(396,302,081)

Depreciation

7

(12,963,697)

(15,942,769)

Finance costs

3

(2,069,003)

(1,929,420)

(618,229,985)

(635,546,735)

Interest received
Gain on sale of plant and equipment

Non-exchange revenue

Expenses

Total expenses
Surplus/(deficit) for the year
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3

22,882,087

(1,735,010)
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Statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2014

Notes

2014
R

Restated
2013
R

part

e

Assets
Current assets

318,065,557

215,372,045

Cash and cash equivalents

4

308,045,012

211,205,207

Accounts receivable

5

9,636,958

3,916,242

Inventories

6

383,587

250,596

7

34,268,612

38,371,061

352,334,169

253,743,106

Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities

275,927,150

199,304,683

Accounts payable

8

256,079,005

181,306,748

Current portion of finance lease obligation

9

573,090

323,807

Current portion of operating lease obligations

11

637,575

45,064

Provisions

10

18,637,480

17,629,064

30,031,872

30,945,363

Non-current liabilities
Long-term portion of finance lease obligation

9

11,188,082

11,761,172

Long-term portion of operating lease obligations

11

18,843,790

19,184,191

305,959,022

230,250,046

Net assets

46,375,147

23,493,060

Accumulated surplus

46,375,147

23,493,060

Total net assets

46,375,147

23,493,060

Total liabilities
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Statement of changes in net assets
as at 31 March 2014

Restated
accumulated
surplus
R

Balance at 31 March 2011
Deficit for the year – 2011/12

Balance at 31 March 2012

66,993,660
(41,765,590)
25,228,070

Deficit for the year – 2012/13

(1,735,010)

Balance at 31 March 2013

23,493,060

Surplus for the year – 2013/14

22,882,087

Balance as at 31 March 2014

46,375,147
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Cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2014

Notes

2014
R

Restated
2013
R

14c

46,057,957

82,813,806

Transfers from government entities

2

576,979,000

566,922,630

Interest received

2

12,354,399

11,764,748

(224,241,254)

(221,372,465)

(301,765,842)

(367,394,408)

(2,069,003)

(1,929,420)

part

e

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
External earnings

Payments
Personnel cost
Suppliers
Finance cost
Net cash flows from operating activities

3
14b

107,315,257

70,804,891

14a

(10,235,910)

(13,966,993)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of equipment

84,265

Proceeds on disposal of equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

835,349

(10,151,645)

(13,131,644)

Repayments (on) finance leases

(323,807)

(123,506)

Net cash (used in) financing activities

(323,807)

(123,506)

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

4

96,839,805

57,549,741

211,205,207

153,655,466

308,045,012

211,205,207
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Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts
for the year ended 31 March 2014

Budget
2013/14
R

Actual
2013/14
R

12,002,372

12,354,399

576,979,000

576,979,000

59,332,609

51,778,673

648,313,981

641,112,072

Personnel cost**

(240,116,813)

(224,241,254)

15,875,559

Programme, projects and other
administrative expenses

(393,225,617)

(378,956,031)

14,269,586

(16,247,454)

(12,963,697)

3,283,757

%

Variance
R

Net surplus per statement of
financial performance
Revenue
Interest received
Transfers from other government entities
External earnings*
Total revenue

352,027
(7,553,936)
-1.11%

(7,201,909)

Expenses

Depreciation***
Finance costs
Total expenses
Net deficit

(1,958,287)

(2,069,003)

(651,548,171)

(618,229,985)

(3,234,190)

22,882,087

Plus: accumulated surplus previous year

23,493,060

Net: accumulated surplus as per
statement of financial position

46,375,147

Notes on variances:
*
External earnings – income only to be recognised once expenditure is incurred.
** Personnel cost – due to vacancies as a result of re-alignment process in Seda.
*** Depreciation – adjustments due to change in estimates of useful lives.
Refer to note 1.18.
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(110,716)
5.11%

33,318,186
26,116,277
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Notes to the annual financial statements

part

e

for the year ended 31 March 2014

1. Accounting policies
The financial statements were prepared on the historical
cost basis in accordance with Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice and the Public Finance
Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) as amended.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis. The accounting policies have been applied
consistently throughout the year and agree with the
accounting policies applied in the previous financial year
except where explicitly stated.
1.1 Basis of preparation
In terms of section 55(1)b of the PFMA, Seda is required
to comply with Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
(GRAP).
The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the effective Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practices (GRAP) including any
interpretation, guidelines and directives issued by the
Accounting Standards Board (ASB).
During the year, Seda adopted the applicable standards
of GRAP which became effective for the current financial
period. A brief description of these standards, as well
as an estimate of the impact is contained in Note 1.1.1.
In the absence of a GRAP standard, the GRAP hierarchy
in GRAP 3 – Accounting policies, changes in accounting
estimates and errors are used to develop an appropriate
accounting policy. In terms of GRAP 3, judgement must be
used when developing an accounting policy. In applying
judgement, GRAP 3 requires that Management refers to
and considers the applicability of the following sources

in descending order:
(a) the requirements and guidance in Standards of
GRAP dealing with similar and related issues; and
(b) the definitions, recognition criteria and
measurement concepts for assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses set out in the Framework
for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous
period, except for the changes set out in Note 1.1.1.
The annual financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for the measurement
of certain financial instruments, and incorporate the
principal accounting policies set out below.
Seda concluded that the annual financial statements
present fairly its financial position, financial performance
and cash flow.
1.1.1 Adoption of new and revised standards
During the previous year, Seda adopted one standard of
GRAP which became effective from 1 April 2013. A brief
description of this standard, as well as an estimate of
the impact is contained below.
The following standard which is relevant to Seda has
been adopted in this financial year:
GRAP 25 – Employee benefits

In terms of the Standard of GRAP, an entity accounts for
the amounts or benefits due to employees, their spouses
or third parties when employees have rendered services
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Notes to the annual financial statements (continued)

to the entity, and the rendering of those services entitles
employees to certain benefits.
The accounting principles are therefore separated very
broadly into three categories, i.e. those provided:
•
•
•

in the short-term;
after retirement; and
in the long-term.

1. Short term employee benefits
Short-term benefits are those benefits to be paid within
12 months after the reporting date, and are presented
on an undiscounted basis like:
•
•
•

Salaries and wages;
Leave;
Bonuses, incentives and performance payments.

2. Post-retirement benefits
Entities often provide certain benefits to employees once
they retire, e.g. they may be entitled to receive a pension
based on their salary while they were employed, or
entities may agree to pay the medical costs of employees.
Such as:
• Defined contribution plans;
• Defined benefit plans.
3. Long-term benefits
Long-term benefits are those that are provided to
employees more than 12 months after the reporting
date, e.g. long service leave, disability benefits, or bonus
and performance payments.
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4. Termination benefits
Termination benefits are paid to employees when they
accept voluntary retrenchment or when an entity ends
an employee’s employment contract before he or she
reaches retirement age.
The Standard will not have a material impact on Seda.
Seda does not provide long-term and termination benefits.
Refer to note 1.9 for Seda’s contribution to Employee
Benefits.
1.1.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet
effective
Standards issued but not yet effective up to date of
issuance of Seda’s financial statements are listed below.
As at the date of this report, the Minister has not yet
announced an effective date for these standards. A list
of the interpretations that have been issued but are not
yet effective has been provided. These will be adopted
when they become effective.

Standard or interpretation

Planned/
effective
date

Applicable to Seda:
IGRAP 3

None
Determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease announced

IGRAP 13

Operating leases – incentives None
announced
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Standard or interpretation

Planned/
effective
date

Not applicable to Seda:

Standard or interpretation
Not applicable to Seda:

Segment reporting

None
announced

IGRAP 9

Distribution of non-cash
assets to owners

None
announced

IGRAP 1

Applying the probability
test on initial recognition of
exchange revenue

None
announced

IGRAP 10

Assets received from
customers

None
announced

IGRAP 11

IGRAP 2

Changes in existing
None
decommissioning, restoration announced
and similar liabilities

Consolidation – Special
purpose entities

None
announced

IGRAP 12

Jointly controlled entities –
non-monetary contributions
by ventures

None
announced

IGRAP 14

Evaluating the substance of
transactions involving the
legal form of the lease

None
announced

GRAP 20

Related-party disclosures

None
announced

IGRAP 5

Rights to interests arising
from decommissioning,
restoration and
environmental rehabilitation
funds

None
announced

None
Applying the restatement
approach under the standard announced
of GRAP on financial
reporting in hyperinflationary
economies

IGRAP 6

Loyalty programmes

None
announced

IGRAP 7

Limit on a defined benefit
asset, minimum funding
requirements and their
interaction

None
announced

Agreements for the
construction of assets from
exchange transactions

None
announced

IGRAP 8

e

Planned/
effective
date

GRAP 18

IGRAP 4

part

GRAP 105 Transfers of functions
between entities under
common control

None
announced

GRAP 106 Transfers of functions
between entities not under
common control

None
announced

The implementation of the above GRAP standards will
not have a material effect on the financial position of
Seda since the standards of GRAP are closely aligned
with SA GAAP.
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1.2 Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or
valuation of assets to its residual value over their estimated
useful life, using the straight-line method.
Residual values and estimated useful lives are assessed
on an annual basis.
The carrying amount of plant and equipment is
derecognised on disposal or when no future economic
benefits or service potential is expected from its use or
disposal.
The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is included in the Statement of
Financial Performance.
1.3 Impairment of assets
At each Statement of Financial Position date, Seda
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
Seda estimates the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit to which the asset belongs.
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The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or
deficit, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in surplus or deficit, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.
1.4 Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.
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Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of Seda at their fair value at the inception of the lease
or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the Statement of Financial Position as a
finance lease obligation. Lease payments are apportioned
between finance charges and a reduction of the lease
obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are charged to surplus or deficit, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets.
Rentals payable and direct costs under operating leases
are charged to surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Benefits received
and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating
lease are also spread on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

part

e

Revenue from contracts and services rendered is recognised
when all the following have been satisfied:
•
•

•
•

•

Seda has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
Seda retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods
sold;
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that the economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction
will flow to Seda; and
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of
the transaction can be measured reliably.

1.5 Inventories
Consumable stores are valued at the lower of initial cost
or current replacement cost.

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering
of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated
with the transaction is recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the transaction at the statement of
financial position date. The outcome of a transaction can
be estimated reliably when all the following conditions
are satisfied:

The agency recognises inventories as an expense in the
Statement of Financial Performance when distributed.

•
•

1.6 Revenue recognition
•
Revenue from exchange transactions
Investment income represents interest received on cash
balances with financial institutions. Interest is recognised,
in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate
method.

•

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that the economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction
will flow to Seda;
the stage of completion of the transaction at
the statement of financial position date can be
measured reliably; and
the costs incurred for the transaction and
the costs to complete the transaction can be
measured reliably.
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When the outcome of the transaction involving the
rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue shall be recognised only to the extent of the
expenses recognised that are recoverable.
Revenue from exchange transactions refers to revenue
that accrued to the entity directly in return for services
rendered/goods sold, the value of which approximates
the consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents the amounts
receivable for goods and services provided in the normal
course of business, net trade discounts and volume
rebates, and value added tax.
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions refers to
transactions where the entity received revenue from
another entity without directly giving approximately
equal value in exchange. Revenue from non-exchange
transactions is generally recognised to the extent that
the related receipt or receivable qualifies for recognition
as an asset and there is no liability to repay the amount.
Transfers from government entities represents the
parliamentary grant from the Department of Trade and
Industry and provincial governments; external earnings
comprise revenue from contracts.

Government grants are recognised when it is probable that
future economic benefits or service potential will flow to
the entity and these benefits can be measured reliably.
The grant is recognised to the extent that there are no
further obligations arising from the receipt of the grant.
Government grants received for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support with no future related
costs are recognised as income in the period in which
they become receivable. Government grants relating to
specific expenditure are deferred and recognised in the
year during which the expenses are incurred.
Revenue from the recovery of unauthorised, irregular,
fruitless and wasteful expenditure is based on legislated
procedures, including those set out in the Public Finance
Management Act (Act No. 1 of 1999, as amended) and
is recognised when the recovery thereof from the
responsible Board Members or officials is virtually certain.
1.7 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when Seda has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable
that Seda will be required to settle that obligation.
Provisions are measured at the Board’s best estimate of
the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the
Statement of Financial Position date, and are discounted
to present value where the effect is material.
1.8 Employee benefits

Transfers from government entities are recognised as
income on the accrual basis as and when invoiced or
received from the dti or provincial governments.

92

SEDA SMALL ENTERPRISE DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

Short-term employee benefits
The cost of all short-term employee benefits is recognised
during the period in which the employee renders the

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

related service. The provisions for employee entitlements
to performance bonus and/or thirteen cheque represent
the amount which Seda has a present obligation to
pay as a result of employees’ service provided to the
reporting date. The provisions have been calculated
at undiscounted amounts based on current wage and
salary rates.
Provident Fund
Seda contributes to defined contribution plans and
recognises this expense as an expense in the Statement
of Financial Performance. This fund is governed by the
Pension Fund Act, 1956.
Medical Aid
Medical Aid contributions are restricted to the period
of employment.
1.9 Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction cost on Seda’s
Statement of Financial Position when Seda has become
a party to contractual provisions of the instrument.
Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are
measured as set out below:
Financial assets
Financial assets are cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables.
Accounts receivable
Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at
fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised

part
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cost using the effective interest rate method. Appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired. The allowance
recognised is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition.
Bank and cash balances
Cash and cash equivalents comprise on hand and demand
deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Cash is subsequently held at amortised cost.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities consist of finance lease long-term
liabilities and trade and other payables and other shortterm finance lease liabilities.
The financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value,
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method.
Trade payables
Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method.
Derecognition
The derecognition of financial instruments occur when
the obligation is extinguished.
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1.10 Residual values
An entity is required to measure the residual value of
an asset. An estimation is made of the amount it would
receive currently for the asset if the asset were already
of the age and condition expected at the end its useful
life. GRAP 17 requires residual values (if material) to
be estimated at the date of acquisition and thereafter
to be reviewed at each reporting date. If these change
from the prior year, the depreciation charge is adjusted
prospectively.
1.11 Critical accounting judgments and key sources
of estimation uncertainty
Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting
policies
In the process of applying the Seda’s accounting policies
management has made the following judgments that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements:

undue hardship to the debtor or his/her dependants; or
it would be to the advantage of the state to effect a
settlement of its claim or to waive the claim. Provision
for bad debt is initially recognised and subsequently
reviewed at every reporting date in line with GRAP 19.
Bonus provision

The provision for bonuses is based on management’s
judgement and represents the obligation to pay bonuses
to salaried employees as a result of predetermined
performance criteria having been met. This is in line
with GRAP 25.
1.12 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure comprises expenditure, other than
unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention of
or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any
applicable legislation, including:
•

Plant and equipment

Depreciation is calculated on the historical cost using
the methods and the rates stated below in note 7. The
residual values of all assets are estimated, until they are
not usable anymore.
Trade and other receivables

The provision for bad debt was calculated on a specific
identification basis after consideration of the factors
as required by Treasury Regulation 11 namely: that all
reasonable steps have been taken to recover the debt
and the debt is irrecoverable; or the recovery of the debt
would be uneconomical; or that the recovery would cause
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•

the Public Finance Management Act (PFMA), Act 1
No. of 1999 (as amended by Act No. 29 of 1999);
or
the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of
1968; or any regulation made in terms of the Act).

Irregular expenditure is accounted for as expenditure
in the Statement of Financial Performance and where
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue
in the Statement of Financial Performance.
1.13 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure means expenditure
that was made in vain and would have been avoided
had reasonable care been exercised. Fruitless and
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wasteful expenditure is accounted for as expenditure
in the Statement of Financial Performance and where
recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue
in the Statement of Financial Performance.
1.14 Offset
Transactions are offset when such offsetting reflects the
substance of the transaction or event. Where a legally
enforceable right of offset exists for recognised financial
liabilities, and there is an intention to settle the liability
and realise the asset simultaneously, or to settle on a net
basis all related financial effects are offset.
1.15 Related parties
The agency, as a Public Finance Management Act (PFMA),
Schedule 3A Public Entity, operates in an economic
environment currently dominated by entities directly
or indirectly owned by the South African Government.
Seda discloses related party transaction and the nature
of its relationship with the other party where the other
party has significant influence through the participation
in the financial and operating policy decisions and/ or
where significant transactions occurred with such an
entity. Refer to note 16.
1.16 Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the entity; or a present obligation that arises

part
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from past events but is not recognised because it is
not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits or service potential will be required
to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliability, in line
with GRAP 19.
1.17 Commitments
Commitments are agreements that were entered into by
the agency with an external service provider before the
reporting date where delivery is expected to take effect
after the reporting date.
Such commitments do not meet the definition of a liability
in terms of the conceptual framework.
1.18 Budget information
Comparison of budget and actual amounts are presented
in the Statement of Budget and Actual Amounts. Seda
only presents the final budget amounts. Differences
(variances) between the actual amounts and budget
amounts are presented and explained.
As per GRAP 24 Seda prepares its budget on a comparable
basis, meaning that the budget and financial instruments:
•
•
•
•

are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting
for both;
including the same activities and entities;
using the same classification system; and
are prepared for the same period.
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2014
R

Restated
2013
R

576,979,000

566,922,630

External earnings

51,778,673

54,667,610

Interest received

12,354,399

11,764,748

Gain on sale of plant and equipment

-

260,719

Assets received as grants

-

196,018

641,112,072

633,811,725

224,241,254

221,372,465

205,826,217

202,936,916

Notes

2. Revenue
Parliamentary grants

Included in external earnings is inter alia an amount
of R41.93 million from various ring fenced projects;
R2.48 million from provincial governments; R3.25 million
from local- and district governments.

3. Surplus/(deficit) for the year
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year is arrived at after taking into
account the following:
Personnel cost
- Salaries

2,597,335

2,972,045

- Provision for performance bonus

17,865,564

16,931,416

- Provision for leave

(2,047,862)

(1,467,912)

- Temporary workers
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2014
R

Restated
2013
R

336,346,298

358,579,167

1,711,691

2,244,444

- Admin related (excluding Board Members' emoluments,
operating lease expense, finance cost and provision for bad
debt)

49,322,424

50,310,350

- Communication costs

20,320,927

26,595,029

- Computer services

8,336,732

11,205,588

- Professional services (excluding auditors' remuneration)

9,034,873

7,499,237

243,455,621

257,164,202

4,164,030

3,560,317

1,074,129

1,665,623

- Buildings

37,898,947

32,978,383

Depreciation

12,963,697

15,942,769

- Equipment

1,342,990

1,430,278

- Office furniture

2,292,405

2,411,415

- Motor vehicles

3,096,302

3,186,188

- Computer equipment

4,546,175

7,013,600

-

37,709

1,662,573

1,517,291

109

272,269

23,143

74,019

Notes

Programme, projects and other administrative expenses
- Staff training and development

- Programmes and projects
- Other

part

e

Board members' emoluments
- For services as members (excl CEO remuneration)
Operating lease expense

- Leased computer equipment
- Leased improvements
- Leased office furniture
- Leased security equipment
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Notes

Auditors' remuneration

Restated
2013
R

2014
R

3,632,976

3,078,908

- External auditors

1,753,000

1,832,302

•

Regularity audit

1,753,000

1,832,302

•

Interim audit

-

-

1,879,976

1,246,606

2,069,003

1,929,420

1,917,912

1,723,257

151,091

206,163

3,681

-

239,571,506

195,781,937

68,132,450

15,092,398

341,056

330,872

308,045,012

211,205,207

- Internal auditors
Finance cost
- Interest on finance lease obligation (liability at amortized
cost)
- Other
Provision for bad debts

5

4. Cash and cash equivalents
Call account
Current accounts
Petty cash

Refer to Note 15.4 for detail on interest rates.
Of the cash balance R138,564,948 (2013: R79,446,840) relates to
grants received in advance which are to be utilised for specific
projects as reflected in note 8.
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Notes

2014
R

part

e

2013
R

5. Accounts receivable
5,373,868

Payment in advance

932,361

100,238

100,959

Deposits

1,435,942

1,191,543

Sundry receivables

2,213,268

1,236,115

Staff receivables

Provision for bad debt – sundry receivables
Relocation cost receivables
Provision for bad debt – relocation cost receivables

(157,067)

(153,386)

859,212

797,153

(188,503)

(188,503)

9,636,958

3,916,242

Opening balance at 1 April

341,889

513,546

Less: Bad debt reclassified

-

Provision for bad debts:
Movement for the year:

Net charge to the Statement of Financial Performance
Closing balance at 31 March

3

(171,657)

341,889

341,889

3,681

-

345,570

341,889

383,587

250,596

6. Inventories
Consumable stores
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7. Plant and equipment – 2013/14

Equipment
R

Office
furniture
R

Motor
vehicles
R

Computer
equipment
R

Leased
computer
equipment
R

Leasehold
improvements
R

Leased
office
furniture
R

Leased
security
equipment
R

Total
R

4,322,878

1,499,090

115,040,164

Major assets
(above R2,000 per item)
At 1 April 2013
Cost

10,185,057 18,113,690 21,196,187 43,996,122

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

(6,145,193) (9,058,604) (12,210,079) (32,658,843) (5,014,762) (5,936,467) (4,322,222) (1,394,020)

Opening carrying amount

4,039,864

9,055,086

4,039,864

9,055,086

830,641

337,676

5,015,930 10,711,210

8,986,108 11,337,279

1,168

8,986,108 11,337,279

(76,740,190)

4,774,743

656

105,070

38,299,974

1,168

4,774,743

656

105,070

38,299,974

-

1,224,445

-

-

8,903,366

Year ended 31 March
2014
Opening carrying amount
Additions at cost
Disposals at cost
Disposal depreciation
Work in progress
Depreciation for the year
Cost re-allocated
Depreciation re-allocated
Impairment
Closing carrying amount

(1,344,967)

2,744,754

3,765,850

(774,484) (3,170,651) (3,984,267)

1,194,438

460,195

2,537,621

3,175,643

-

491,881

-

-

(1,262,374) (2,011,189) (3,096,302) (4,440,432)
3,367,671

512,956

(3,133,748)

(656,826)

-

-

3,691,525

7,415,295

(454,798) (2,993,053)

-

(99,016)

-

-

(9,373,385)

-

92,707

-

-

7,460,604

-

(1,659,041)

(109)

(23,143)

491,881
(12,492,590)

(721,276)

739,116

(321,178)

-

129,438

85,907

3,206,003

720,113

(553,233)

321,036

-

(10,748)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,632,639 10,067,023

5

4,519,721

405

81,927

33,408,540

4,294,654 12,575,755

4,001,700

1,499,090

115,191,465

At 31 March 2014
Cost

13,038,403 18,681,719 20,315,492 40,784,652

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

(9,346,878) (11,266,424) (12,682,853) (30,717,629) (4,294,649) (8,056,034) (4,001,295) (1,417,163)

Carrying amount
Useful lives

3,691,525

7,415,295

6–7 years

6–7 years

7,632,639 10,067,023
4–6 years

Minor assets
(excluded above and below R2,000 per item)
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3–5 years

5

4,519,721

405

81,927

4–7 years

6–7 years

6–7 years

6–7 years

(81,782,925)
33,408,540

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Equipment
R

Office
furniture
R

Motor
vehicles
R

Computer
equipment
R

Leased
computer
equipment
R

Leasehold
improvements
R

Leased
office
furniture
R

Leased
security
equipment
R

part

e
Total
R

At 31 March 2014
Depreciation for the year
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
Carrying amount
Total carrying value

(80,616)
833,998

(281,216)
4,807,678

(717,924) (4,070,274)
116,074

737,404

3,807,599

8,152,699

0

(105,743)

0

(3,532)

0

0

(471,107)

-

1,039,930

-

26,507

716,426

-

7,424,539

-

(1,033,839)

-

(26,484)

(715,946)

-

(6,564,467)

-

6,091

-

23

480

-

860,072

7,632,639 10,073,114

5

4,519,744

885

81,927

34,268,612

Note: Leased assets are encumbered by a finance lease, refer to note 9. Seda complied with the accounting policy as stated in 1.4.
Major assets
(above R2,000 per item)
At 1 April 2012
Cost

11,177,706 13,504,254 21,162,315 37,185,255

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

(6,005,401) (7,380,872) (10,388,943) (25,020,701) (4,977,053) (4,423,618) (4,052,430) (1,320,001)

Opening carrying amount

5,172,305

6,123,382 10,773,372 12,164,554

5,015,930 10,371,654

38,877

5,948,036

4,325,356

272,926

1,499,090

104,241,560

179,089

(63,569,019)
40,672,541

Year ended 31 March 2013
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7. Plant and equipment – 2013/14 (continued)

Equipment
R
Opening carrying amount

5,172,305

Additions at cost

493,264

Disposals at cost

(289,358)

Disposal depreciation
Work in progress

Leased
security
equipment
R

Leased
office
furniture
R

Computer
equipment
R

Leased
computer
equipment
R

Leasehold
improvements
R

6,123,382 10,773,372 12,164,554

38,877

5,948,036

272,926

179,089

40,672,541

-

369,981

-

-

9,487,438
(2,727,732)

Office
furniture
R

1,238,663

Motor
vehicles
R

1,610,337

(233,710) (1,562,717)

5,775,193

Total
R

(639,469)

-

-

(2,478)

-

176,137

159,989

1,372,075

569,762

-

-

2,477

-

2,280,440

-

4,038,898

-

-

-

-

-

-

4,038,898

Depreciation for the year

(1,351,186) (2,114,052) (3,186,188) (6,900,718)

Cost re-allocated

(1,196,555)

(434,415)

Depreciation re-allocated

1,035,257

276,331

Closing carrying amount

4,039,864

9,055,086

(13,748)

1,675,143

(7,023) (1,307,186)
8,986,108 11,337,279

(37,709) (1,515,468)

(272,269)

(74,019)

(15,451,609)

-

(30,425)

-

-

-

-

2,619

-

-

(2)

1,168

4,774,743

656

105,070

38,299,974

5,015,930 10,711,210

4,322,878

1,499,090

115,040,164

At 31 March 2013
Cost

10,185,057 18,113,690 21,196,187 43,996,122

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment

(6,145,193) (9,058,604) (12,210,079) (32,658,843) (5,014,762) (5,936,467) (4,322,222) (1,394,020)

Carrying amount
Useful lives

4,039,864

9,055,086

6–7 years

6–7 years

8,986,108 11,337,279
4–6 years

3–5 years

1,168

4,774,743

656

105,070

4–7 years

6–7 years

6–7 years

6–7 years

-

-

(76,740,190)
38,299,974

Minor assets
(excluded above and below R2,000 per item)
At 31 March 2013
Depreciation for the year
Cost

(79,092)
652,071

Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
Carrying amount
Total carrying value

(297,363)
3,882,048

(624,484) (3,859,752)
27,587

22,296

4,067,451

9,077,382

-

(112,882)

-

(1,823)

-

1,260,159

-

9,080

780,518

-

6,583,876

-

(1,243,014)

-

(5,543)

(779,996)

-

(6,512,789)

17,145

-

3,537

522

-

71,087

8,986,108 11,354,424

1,168

4,778,280

1,178

105,070

38,371,061

-

Note: Leased assets are encumbered by a finance lease, refer to note 9. Seda complied with the accounting policy as stated in 1.4.
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Notes

2014
R

part

e

2013
R

8. Accounts payable
Restated

Trade payables

12,824,157

5,740,606

Sundry payables and accrued expenses

97,126,429

86,507,969

Leave pay accrual
Grants received in advance*

7,563,471

9,611,333

138,564,948

79,446,840

256,079,005

181,306,748

11,761,172

12,084,979

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are settled on a
30 day basis. Due to the short-term nature of the payables,
management believes that the carrying amount approximates
their fair value.
* Including R86,417,282 for the dti ring fenced projects. Balance
relates to other stakeholder-funded projects.

9. Finance lease obligation
The finance lease consists of one lease contract. The finance
lease is capitalised at a fix rate of 16% per annum payable
in average monthly instalments of R191,478 (escalating at
8% p.a.) over 173 months (2014 – 79 months remaining; 2013
– 91 months remaining). The agreement is secured against the
assets, described as leased assets in note 7.
Total outstanding
Less: Current portion
Long-term liability

(573,090)
11,188,082

(323,807)
11,761,172
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Minimum lease
payments

2014
Due within one year
Due between two and five years
After five years

2013
Due within one year
Due between two and five years
After five years

Finance cost

Present value

2,425,739
11,805,102

(1,852,649)
(5,664,328)

573,090
6,140,774

5,766,913
19,997,754

(719,605)
(8,236,582)

5,047,308
11,761,172

2,246,055
10,930,649
9,095,065
22,271,769

(1,922,248)
(6,497,571)
(1,766,971)
(10,186,790)

Notes

Present value

323,807
4,433,078
7,328,094
12,084,979

2014
R

2013
R

17,974,161
663,319
18,637,480

16,955,933
673,131
17,629,064

16,955,933
(16,847,336)
108,597
17,865,564
17,974,161

15,490,031
(15,465,514)
24,517
16,931,416
16,955,933

10. Provisions
Provision for bonuses
Provision for 13th cheques

Movement for the year
Provision for bonuses
Opening Balance at 1 April
Less: bonuses paid
Net charge to the Statement of Financial Performance
Closing balance at 31 March
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part

e

The provision for bonuses is based on management’s judgement and represents the obligation to pay bonuses to
salaried employees, as a result of predetermined performance criteria having been met. Performance bonuses are
paid one year in arrears as the assessment of eligible employees had not taken place at the reporting date.

Notes

2014
R

2013
R

11. Operating lease obligation
Seda leases office buildings and photocopiers for its national
office, nationwide provincial offices and branches in terms of
operating leases. Seda does not have the option to acquire
the buildings or photocopiers at the termination of the leases.
637,575

45,064

Non-current portion

18,843,790

19,184,191

Straight-lining effect of the operating lease

19,481,365

19,229,255

Up to one year

28,467,353

23,940,873

Between two and five years

82,904,561

66,296,548

8,359,080

34,764,796

119,730,994

125,002,217

Current portion

Operating lease commitments
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are as follows:

Later than five years
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Notes

2014
R

2013
R

12. Contingent liabilities
There are contingent liabilities in respect of:
Legal claims – CCMA

902,942

4,600,000

Legal claims – Suppliers

616,137

329,989

1,519,079

4,929,989

32,021,454

25,286,181

-

-

32,021,454

25,286,181

890,283

2,742,697

-

-

Refer to note 1.16.

a. Commitments
Current expenditure
Approved and contracted
Approved but not yet contracted
Capital expenditure
Approved and contracted
Approved but not yet contracted
Total commitments
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890,283

2,742,697

32,911,737

28,028,878
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part

e

13. Remuneration of Board of Directors
13.1 Board members: 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014
No
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15

Name
F Habib#
R Kenosi#
PF Lugayeni
HN Lupuwana^
TR Makhuvha^^
F Mayimele-Hashaste##
LJ Mngomezulu##
M Mohoto*
T Mokgoro
TB Nkambule#
V Skosana#
DMN Thabaneng
M Venter
S Zikode~*
I Zwane

SubsisRePerforDirector
tence
Cell phone imbursemance
fees
allowance Travelling allowance ments
Salary
bonus
TOTAL
34,672
80
3,650
38,402
58,930
160
3,285
62,375
139,278
1,280
11,753
2,370
154,681
760 1,418,679
336,000 1,755,439
16,226
160
912
17,298
78,531
560
6,898
830
86,819
122,506
480
7,446
130,432
54,557
160
4,380
59,097
76,840
960
2,628
80,428
41,743
240
3,321
45,304
95,866
480
16,458
112,804
70,366
960
6,023
77,349
117,974
720,
13,906
132,600
907,489
6,240
80,660
3,960 1,418,679
336,000 2,753,028

Board sub-committees members: 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014
No
16
17
18

Name
E Baloyi*
MJ Lesejane
K Roelofse*

TOTAL

Director
fees
73,015
73,015
980,504

SubsisRetence
Cell phone imburseallowance Travelling allowance ments
240
3,285
240
3,285
6,480

83,945

-

Performance
bonus

Salary
-

-

3,960 1,418,679

TOTAL
-

76,540
76,540

336,000 2,829,568

*

These members did not receive remuneration due to being employed elsewhere in the Public Sector.
Term of service ended on 31 August 2013.
##
Resigned end August 2013.
** Mzolo, M resigned on 7 June 2013.
^ HN Lupuwana, Executive Board member, resigned on 31 December 2013.
~ S Zikode, Executive Board member. Appointed as Acting CEO 1 January 2014.
^^ TR Makhuvha appointed 1 November 2013.
#
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13.2 Board members: 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
SubsisRePerforDirector
tence
Cell phone imbursemance
No Name
fees
allowance Travelling allowance ments
Salary
bonus
TOTAL
1 N Dinie**
97,728
1,280
3,796
689
103,493
2 F Habib
30,052
2,847
32,899
3 R Kenosi
108,689
400
4,752
113,841
4 PF Lugayeni
137,513
1,920
6,899
2,271
148,603
1,873 1,681,639
343,813 2,027,325
5 HN Lupuwana# ^
6 F Mayimele-Hashaste
204,626
1,760
16,753
1,442
224,581
7 LJ Mngomezulu
251,181
640
14,564
266,385
8 M Mohoto*
9 T Mokgoro
72,512
320
5,482
78,314
10 S Mzolo
73,024
320
6,315
79,659
11 TB Nkambule
145,299
1,360
4,161
150,820
12 V Skosana
87,324
240
6,650
94,214
13 DMN Thabaneng
102,407
160
16,575
82
119,224
14 M Venter
65,912
720
4,380
150
71,162
15 I Zwane
91,014
640
14,658
106,312
1,467,281
9,760
107,832
6,507 1,681,639
343,813 3,616,832

Board sub-committees members: 1 April 2012 to 31 March 2013
No
16
17
18

Name
E Baloyi*
MJ Lesejane
K Roelofse*

TOTAL
*
#

**
^

108

SubsisReAttentence
Cell phone imbursedance fees allowance Travelling allowance ments
71,941
80
4,095
71,941
80
4,095
1,539,222

9,840

111,927

-

Performance
bonus

Salary
-

-

6,507 1,681,639

These members did not receive remuneration due to being employed elsewhere in the public service.
Including performance bonus in respect of 2011/12.
N Dinie resigned on 3 December 2012.
HN Lupuwana is the only Executive Board member.
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TOTAL
-

76,116
76,116

343,813 3,692,948

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2014
R

Restated
2013
R

10,235,910

13,966,993

Net surplus/(deficit) for the year

22,882,087

(1,735,010)

Non-cash movements:
Depreciation
(Profit)/Loss on sale of plant and equipment

14,254,094
12,963,697
1,290,397

15,682,050
15,942,769
(260,719)

Changes in working capital
Increase in provisions
Increase in accounts payable
(Increase) in inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in accounts receivable
Smoothing effect of operating lease
Net cash flows from operating activities

70,179,076
1,008,416
74,772,257
(132,991)
(5,720,716)
252,110
107,315,257

56,857,851
1,411,342
26,518,504
(12,139)
28,146,196
793,948
70,804,891

51,778,673
(9,636,958)
3,916,242
46,057,957

54,667,610
(3,916,242)
32,062,438
82,813,806

Notes

part

e

14. Notes to the cash flow statement
a) Plant and equipment
During the period under review Seda acquired assets by means
of cash on hand. As per asset note 7.
b) Reconciliation of surplus/(deficit) for the year to net cash
flows from operating activities

c) Receipts from external earnings
Gross external earnings
Accounts receivable – current period
Accounts receivable – prior period

2
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15. Financial instruments
15.1 Capital risk management
As Seda is not exposed to long-term debt, other than the finance lease commitment, there are no meaningful debt to
equity ratios such as gearing ratios to be disclosed. The majority of the funding is received from the dti and therefore
is dependent on their support.
15.2 Financial risk management objectives
The Board Members monitor and manage the financial risks relating to the operations of the agency through internal
risk reports which analyze exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks include market risk (including
currency risk, fair value interest risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk.
Compliance with policies and exposure limits is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis. The agency
does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.
15.3 Market risk
The agencies activities are of such a nature that it does not materially expose Seda to financial risks of changes in
foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates as referred to below. There has been no change to the agency’s
exposure to market risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
15.4 Interest rate risk management
Seda is exposed to interest rate risk with the current interest rate movements. The risk is managed by investment of
surplus funds at fixed and floating interest rates for periods of 90 days and shorter with reputable banks.
The following table identifies the period over which those financial instruments that are sensitive to interest rate risk
reprice. Seda surplus funds are invested in terms of its investments policy as approved by its Board.
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2014

Effective
interest rate
as at
31 March 2014

Less than
6 months

More than
6 months

R

R

part

e

Total
R

Assets
Current cash balances

4.00%

68,132,450

68,132,450

Short-term call deposits

5.00%

239,571,506

239,571,506

307,703,956

307,703,956

Liabilities
Finance lease

2013 – Restated

16.00%

Effective
interest rate
as at
31 March 2013

11,761,172

Less than
6 months

More than
6 months

R

R

11,761,172

Total
R

Assets
Current cash balances

3.50%

15,092,398

15,092,398

Short-term call deposits

4.50%

195,781,937

195,781,937

210,874,335

210,874,335

Liabilities
Finance leases

16.00%

12,084,979

12,084,979

15.5 Other price risks
Prices for future purchases and sales of goods and services are generally established on normal commercial terms
directly with suppliers and customers. Management consider the price risk to be insignificant.
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15.6 Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that would arise if a counter party were to default on its contractual obligations resulting
in a financial loss for the entity.
Financial assets which potentially subject Seda to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash and shortterm deposits placed with high credit quality financial institutions. Currently Seda’s cash balances and call deposits
are held at ABSA bank. Trade receivables are presented net of an allowance for doubtful receivables. Seda does not
have any significant exposure to any other individual customer or counter party.
The carrying amounts of financial assets included in the statement of financial position represent the Seda’s exposure
to credit risk in relation to these assets.
15.7 Liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk refers to the risk that an entity will encounter in meeting its obligations associated with financial
liabilities. The Board Members are satisfied that the agency will be able to settle their financial liabilities (payables
and leave pay accrual) and lease liability in the normal course of business.

Notes

2014
R

2013
R

16. Related parties
Seda, as a Public Finance Management Act (PFMA) Schedule 3A
Public Entity, receives its core funding from Parliament via Vote
36 – Department of Trade and Industry as disclosed in note 2.
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17. Remuneration of key management
Payments made to Seda’s executive managers for the year ended 31 March 2014:

No
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
*
2
3
4
5
6
7

Name
M Hogendoorn*
S Kunene
Y Mkhize
D Mushwana
B Cooper
S Soga
P Mahlawe*
L Njenge*

Salary
R
1,239,374
1,061,531
640,057
364,128
724,085
695,991
407,617
1,189,544
6,322,327

Travel
allowance
R
60,000
75,600
96,240
231,840

Cell phone
allowance
R
21,600
16,800
14,400
5,400
14,400
14,400
7,200
14,400
108,600

Re-imbursements
R
6,354
14,444
4,577
4,854
934
2,320
7,202
40,685

Performance
bonus
Other
R
R
291,048
185,703
61,177
40,030
245,346
40,503
110,346
81,099
349,343
114,035
104,275
160,000
912,418
870,487

TOTAL
R
1,618,376
1,339,655
1,020,010
374,382
890,268
1,143,153
633,127
1,467,386
8,486,357

Including performance bonus in respect of 2012/13.
S Kunene – Acting COO (Apr to Nov 2013). Appointed as Executive Manager: Enterprise Development from December 2013.
Y Mkhize – Acting Executive Manager: Corporate Services up to end December 2013.
D Mushwana – Executive Manager: Corporate Services/HR as from January 2014.
B Cooper – Acting Executive Manager: Human Resources (Sept to Dec 2013).
S Soga – Acting Executive Manager: Seda Technology Programme (Stp) as from 11 February 2013.
P Mahlawe – resigned September 2013.

Payments made to Seda’s executive managers for the year ended 31 March 2013: Restated

No
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
*
2
3
4
5
6
8

Name
M Hogendoorn*
KD Motlhoioa*
Y Mkhize
K Slabbert*
R Alummoottil*
S Soga
P Mahlawe*
L Njenge*

Salary
R
1,154,342
785,661
606,040
965,090
955,049
662,907
1,141,991
926,851
7,197,931

Travel
allowance
R
60,000
76,500
75,600
30,000
80,200
322,300

Cell phone
allowance
R
21,600
16,200
14,400
19,800
19,800
14,400
21,600
12,000
139,800

Re-imbursements
R
2,995
10,016
3,783
5,353
15,213
2,952
2,785
43,097

Performance
bonus
Other
R
R
298,865
87,049
203,922
63,239
26,438
120,996
20,841
116,120
133,501
46,080
27,970
75,663
111,142
919,154
412,672

TOTAL
R
1,537,802
1,179,348
789,500
1,162,080
1,224,470
766,570
1,242,206
1,132,978
9,034,954

Including performance bonus in respect of 2011/12.
KD Motlhoioa – retired on 31 December 2012.
Y Mkhize – Acting Executive Manager: Corporate Services as from 1 January 2013.
K Slabbert – Chief Operating Officer till end February 2013.
R Alummoottill – resigned 7 February 2013.
S Soga – Acting Executive Manager: Seda Technology Programme (STP) as from 11 February 2013.
L Njenge – appointed as Chief Strategy and Information Officer as from 1 June 2012.
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Notes

2014
R

2013
R

18. Retrospective restatement of prior period
errors
a)

In previous years only the acting allowance of management
was disclosed in the note related to the remuneration of
key management. The total remuneration of management
receiveing an acting allowance (not only the acting allwance
amount) is now disclosed in the current financial year
which resulted in the restatement of prior year figures in
the relevant note of the annual financial statements.

Note to annual financial statements
Remuneration of key management
As previously stated

-

7,533,292

Remuneration of key management

-

1,501,662

Remuneration of key management – restated for 2013

-

9,034,954
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b)

2014
R

part

e

2013
R

Finance cost and accrued expense have been understated in
previous years. This finance cost has now been recognised
as expenditure which resulted in the restatement of prior
year figures in the Statement of Financial Performance,
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in
Net Assets and the relevant note.

Statement of financial performance
Finance cost
As previously stated

-

(1,724,692)

Interest paid

-

(204,728)

Finance cost – restated for 2013

-

(1,929,420)

Statement of financial position
Accounts payable
As previously stated

-

181,102,020

Accrued expenses

-

204,728

Accounts payable – restated for 2013

-

181,306,748

Note on fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
As previously stated

-

1,435

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

-

144,514

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – restated for 2013

-

145,949
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Notes

c)

2014
R

2013
R

Interest received and cash and cash equivalents were
understated in previous years. This interest received has
now been recognised as income which resulted in the
restatement of prior year figures in the Statement of
Financial Performance, Statement of Financial Position,
Statement of Changes in Net Assets and their relevant
notes.

Statement of financial performance
Interest received
As previously stated

-

Interest received

-

860,519

Interest received – restated for 2013

-

11,764,748

As previously stated

-

210,344,688

Call account increase

-

860,519

Cash and cash equivalents – restated for 2013

-

211,205,207

As previously stated

-

22,837,269

Retained Income/Earnings

-

655,791

Accumulated surplus – restated for 2013

-

23,493,060

10,904,229

Statement of financial position
Cash and cash equivalents

Statement of financial position and statement of changes
in net assets
Accumulated surplus
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2014
R

2013
R

Provident fund

17,753,838

17,436,663

Medical aid

12,666,065

11,418,874

30,419,903

28,855,537

Notes

part

e

19. Retirement benefits and medical aid
The total amounts paid toward retirement benefits for the
period (548 employees for the current year) and medical aid for
the period (387 employees for the current year) are as follows:

20. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Restated
Opening balance

204,728

60,214

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – current year

151,091

145,949

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure condoned
Closing balance

355,819

(1,435)
204,728

The amout of R144,514 included in fruitless expenditure relates to interest paid to Absa bank. Negotiations with Absa
to reduce the amount are currently under way. The balance of R6,577 relates to interest paid to creditors. The Board
will condone the amounts in the 2014/15 financial year.

21. Tax status
Seda is exempt from income tax in terms of section 10 (1)(cA) of the Income Tax Act, 1962.
Seda is exempt from VAT registration.
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ANNEXURE A: SEDA
PROVINCIAL OFFICES

Eastern Cape

Mount
Ayliff
Alfred Nzo
Ukhahlamba
Mthatha
OR Tambo
Chris Hani
Queenstown

East London
Amathole
Cacadu

Port Elizabeth
Nelson Mandela Bay

Incubation centre

Sector

Location

Contact number

Chemin

Chemical industry

Port Elizabeth, Eastern Cape

041 503 6700

Chemin

Chemical industry

East London, Eastern Cape

087 373 1150

Furntech Mthatha

Furniture manufacturing

Mthatha, Eastern Cape

047 531 1840

Seda Construction Incubator (SCI), Mthatha

Construction

Mthatha, Eastern Cape

047 531 1840

Seda Construction Incubator (SCI)

Construction

Port Elizabeth, Eastern Cape

041 486 2595

Seda Nelson Mandela Bay ICT Incubator (SNII) ICT

Port Elizabeth, Eastern Cape

043 702 8200

Seda Alfred Nzo Agro Manufacturing Incubator Agroprocessing
(SANAMI)

Mount Ayliff, Eastern Cape

039 254 5181
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Free State
Provincial Offices
Satellite Offices

Sasolburg

Naledi

Kroonstad
Fezile Dabi

Welkom

Phuthaditjhaba
Thabo Mofutsanyane

Lejweleputswa

Mangaung
Bloemfontein

Xhariep

Trompsburg

120

Incubation centre

Sector

Location

Seda Agricultural and Mining Tooling
Incubator (SAMTI)

Mining and agricultural tooling

Bloemfontein, Free State
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Contact number
051 507 3663
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Gauteng
Provincial Offices

Johannesburg
Satellite Offices

City of Tshwane
City of Johannesburg

Mabopane

Pretoria

Hammanskraal
Olievenhoutbosch

Johannesburg

Bronkhorstspruit
Mamelodi

West Rand
Emfuleni
Sedibeng

Ekurhuleni
Metropolitan

Incubation centre

Sector

Location

EgoliBio
Ekurhuleni Jewellery Incubator
Furntech Johannesburg
Global Jewellery Academy
Lepharo
Seda Automotive Technology Centre (SATEC)
Seda Construction Incubator (SCI)
Seda Essential Oils Business Incubator
(SEOBI)
Seed Container Park (Secopa)

Bio and Life Sciences
Jewellery
Furniture manufacturing
Jewellery manufacturing
Copper, Zinc and Base Metals
Automotive industry
Construction
Essential oils-plant
cultivation and oil distillation
Mixed manufacturing

Pretoria, Gauteng
East Rand, Gauteng
Johannesburg, Gauteng
Lenasia, Gauteng
Springs, Gauteng
Rosslyn, Gauteng
East Rand, Gauteng
Pretoria, Gauteng

012 841 4571
011 825 5822
011 672 2185
071 272 1487
011 363 3920
012 564 5592
031 309 4942
012 808 3061

Diepkloof, Gauteng

South African Manufacturing Technology
Demonstration Centre (SMTDC)
SoftstartBTI (SBTI)
Zenzele Technology Demonstration Centre

Low-cost small scale
manufacturing
ICT
Small scale mining

Soshanguve, Gauteng

011 933 2173
011 933 2445
087 076 8320
012 799 3233
011 695 4800
011 709 4674

Midrand, Gauteng
Randburg, Gauteng

Contact number
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KwaZulu-Natal
Provincial Offices
Newcastle
Amajuba

Umkhanyakude

Zululand

Incubation
centre

Location

Chemin

Chemical
industry

Durban,
KwaZulu-Natal

078 450 8788

Downstream
Aluminium Centre
for Technology
(DACT)

Aluminium
fabrication and
casting

Richards Bay,
KwaZulu-Natal

035 797 1500

Furntech Durban

Furniture
manufacturing

Durban,
KwaZulu-Natal

031 579 3883

Furntech
Umzimkhulu

Furniture
manufacturing

Umzimkhulu,
KwaZulu-Natal

039 259 0993

Durban,
KwaZulu-Natal

031 373 6792

Umzinyathi
Ladysmith
Uthukela
Pietermaritzburg
uMgungundlovu

Richards Bay
Uthungulu

iLembe

Ixopo
Sisonke

Ugu
Port Shepstone
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eThekwini

Contact
number

Sector

Mixed use
Innovation
high‑tech
Technology
Business Incubator
(Invo Tech)
Seda Construction
Incubator (SCI),
Dundee

Construction

Dundee,
KwaZulu-Natal

034 212 2074

Seda Construction
Incubator (SCI)

Construction

Durban,
KwaZulu-Natal

031 309 4942

Seda Construction
Incubator (SCI)

Construction

Kwa-Mashu,
KwaZulu-Natal

031 503 5225

Seda Essential
Oils Business
Incubator (SEOBI)

Essential
Oils-plant
cultivation and
oil distillation

Nkandla,
KwaZulu-Natal

035 833 0412

SmartXchange

ICT

Durban,
KwaZulu-Natal

031 307 1998

SmartXchange

ICT

Ugu,
KwaZulu-Natal

031 307 1998
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Limpopo
Provincial Offices

Thohoyandou

Vhembe

Tzaneen

Polokwane

Mopani

Capricorn
Waterberg
Mokopane
Jane Furse

Greater Sekhukhune

Incubation centre

Sector

Location

Contact number

Mapfura Makhura Incubator (MMI)

Bio-fuels plant production Marble Hall, Limpopo
and processing

013 268 9324

Seda Limpopo Jewellery Incubator (SLJI)

Jewellery manufacturing Polokwane, Limpopo

015 293 0214
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Mpumalanga
Provincial Offices

Bushbuckridge
Nelspruit

Ehlanzeni
Malelane

eMalahleni

Nkangala

Secunda

Gert Sibande

124

Contact
number

Incubation centre

Sector

Location

Furntech White
River

Furniture
manufacturing

White River,
Mpumalanga

013 750 3066

Mpumalanga
Agri-skills
Development and
Training (MASDT)

Agricultural
Nelspruit,
capacity building Mpumalanga

013 754 1144

Mpumalanga
Stainless Steel
Initiative (MSI)

Stainless steel
processing

Middelburg,
Mpumalanga

013 246 1528

Seda Sugar
Cane Incubator
(SESUCI)

Sugar cane –
plant cultivation
and sales

Nelspruit,
Mpumalanga

013 753 7136

Timbali

Floriculture

Nelspruit,
Mpumalanga

013 752 4247
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Northern Cape
Provincial Offices

John Taolo Gaetsewe
Kuruman
Frances Baard
Upington

Siyanda

Pixley ka Seme

Springbok

De Aar

Namakwa

Incubation centre

Kimberley

Sector

Seda Northern Cape Diamond and Jewellery Jewellery
Incubator

Location

Contact number

Kimberley, Northern Cape

053 839 4059
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North West
Provincial Offices

Bojanala
Brits
Rustenburg

Mafikeng

Ngaka Modiri Molema

Vryburg

Dr Ruth Segomotsi Mompati
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Klerksdorp
Dr Kenneth Kaunda

Incubation centre

Sector

Location

Seda Platinum Incubator (SPI)

Platinum jewellery

Rustenburg, North West
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Contact number

014 597 0736
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Western Cape
Provincial Offices

Enterprise
Development Centres

West Coast

Central Karoo

Cape Winelands
Stellenbosch
Bellville

Eden

Name

Location

Central
Karoo

Beaufort
West

CBD

Cape Town

Atlantis

Atlantis

Mitchells
Plain

Operating
from the
Bellville
Office

Southern
Suburbs

Wynberg

West Coast

Vredenburg

Worcester

Worcester

Overberg

Hermanus

Oudtshoorn Oudtshoorn

George
Overberg

City of Cape Town

Knysna

Knysna

Mossel Bay

Mossel Bay

Khayelitsha

Khayelitsha

Incubation centre

Sector

Location

Contact number

Furntech Nyanga

Furniture manufacturing

Nyanga, Cape Town,
Western Cape

021 201 7542

Furntech Head Office

Furniture manufacturing

Cape Town, Western Cape

021 510 0088

Seda Atlantis Renewable Business Incubator
(SAREBI)

Renewable energy

Atlantis, Western Cape

021 577 2719
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Seda offices and outreach delivery points

Name of province

128

Seda branches

Co-locations
with Seda

Co-locations
at local
municipalities/
partners
Mobile units

Kiosks

Eastern Cape

5

0

4

3

6

Free State

6

2

0

5

3

Gauteng

3

1

0

0

6

KwaZulu-Natal

6

5

4

2

1

Limpopo

5

1

4

3

1

Mpumalanga

5

5

7

0

14

Northern Cape

5

0

5

2

3

North West

5

3

5

4

6

Western Cape

3

0

0

0

10

Total

43

17

29

19

50
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Seda provincial office contact details
Seda Provincial Managers

Province
Eastern Cape

Free State

Gauteng

KwaZuluNatal

Limpopo

Office name/
location

ANNEXURE A: SEDA
PROVINCIAL OFFICES

Seda Operations Managers

Name

Address

Contact number

Provincial Office
East London

Ntombozuko
Somtunzi
Acting Provincial
Manager

4 Scherwitz Road
Berea, East London

043 721 1264/1130 (T) somtunzi@seda.org.za
043 721 1652 (F)

E-mail address

Provincial Office

Ntombozuko
Somtunzi
Operations Manager

4 Scherwitz Road
Berea, East London

043 721 1264/1130 (T) somtunzi@seda.org.za
043 721 1652 (F)

Provincial Office
Bloemfontein

Jackie Ntshingila
Provincial Manager

Telkom Building
Block B, 1st Floor
Nelson Mandela Road
Bloemfontein, 9300

051 411 3820 (T)
051 444 4235 (F)

jntshingila@seda.org.za

Provincial Office
Bloemfontein

Boijane Mshumpela
Operations Manager

Telkom Building
Block B, 1st Floor
Nelson Mandela Road
Bloemfontein, 9300

051 411 3820 (T)
051 444 4235 (F)

bmshumpela@seda.org.za

Provincial Office
Gauteng

Nosipho Khonkwane
Provincial Manager

2nd Floor, Forum 5
Braampark, 33 Hoof St
Braamfontein
Johannesburg

011 408 6528 (T)

nkhonkwane@seda.org.za

Provincial Office
Gauteng

Colin Francis
Operations Manager

2nd Floor, Forum 5
Braampark, 33 Hoof St
Braamfontein
Johannesburg

011 408 6528 (T)

cfrancis@seda.org.za

Provincial Office
Durban

Lindani Dhlomo
Provincial Manager

381 Berea Road
Durban, 4001

031 277 9500 (T)
031 277 9510 (F)

ldhlomo@seda.org.za

Provincial Office
Durban

Cedric Mnguni
Operations Manager

381 Berea Road
Durban, 4001

031 277 9500 (T)
031 277 9510 (F)

smnguni@seda.org.za

Provincial Office
Polokwane

Koenie Slabbert
Provincial Manager

2nd Floor, Suite 6
Maneo Building
73 Biccard Street
Polokwane

015 297 1139 (T)
015 297 4022 (F)

kslabbert@seda.org.za

Postnet Suite 32
Private Bag X9307
Polokwane, 0700
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Seda Provincial Managers

Seda Operations

Office name/
location

Name

Address

Contact number

E-mail address

Limpopo

Provincial Office
Polokwane

Martin Rafferty
Operations Manager

2nd Floor, Suite 6
Maneo Building
73 Biccard Street
Polokwane, 7000

015 297 1139 (T)
015 297 4022 (F)

mrafferty@seda.org.za

Mpumalanga

Provincial Office
Nelspruit

Ntokozo Majola
Provincial Manager

Suite 102
Bi-water Building
16 Brander Street
Nelspruit, 1200

013 755 6046/7 (T)
013 755 6043 (F)

nmajola@seda.org.za

Provincial Office
Nelspruit

Mashiba Kgole
Operations Manager

Suite 102
Bi-water Building
16 Brander Street
Nelspruit, 1200

013 755 6046 (T)
013 755 6043 (F)

mkgole@seda.org.za

Provincial Office
Kimberley

Kedisaletse Williams
Provincial Manager

13 Bishops Avenue
Sanlam Building
Kimberley, 8301

053 839 5700 (T)
053 839 5711 (F)

kwilliams@seda.org.za

Province

Northern
Cape

PO Box 3014
Kimberley, 8300
Provincial Office
Kimberley

Vacant

13 Bishops Avenue
Sanlam Building
Kimberley, 8301

053 839 5700 (T)
053 839 5711 (F)

PO Box 3014
Kimberley, 8300
North West

Provincial Office
Rustenburg

Neville Maimane
Provincial Manager

187 Joubert Street
Rustenburg, 0299

014 592 9461 (T)
014 592 9734 (F)

nmaimane@seda.org.za

Provincial Office
Rustenburg

Neo Ramphagane
Operations Manager

187 Joubert Street
Rustenburg, 0299

014 592 9461 (T)
014 592 9734 (F)

nramphagane@seda.org.za

Ryno Kleynhans
Acting Provincial
Manager

6th Floor
Pinnacle Building
2 Burg Street
Cape Town, 8000

021 487 3640 (T)
021 426 4761 (F)

rkleynhans@seda.org.za

Melissa Sonnekus
Acting Operations
Manager

6th Floor
Pinnacle Building
2 Burg Street
Cape Town, 8000

021 487 3640 (T)
021 426 4761 (F)

msonnekus@seda.org.za

Western Cape Provincial Office
Cape Town

Provincial Office
Cape Town
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